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About this Form C

The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC (“Greenhouse Lifestyle,” or the “Company”) is offering up
to 6,175,000 of units of Class D membership interest (the “Units”) in the Company (the “Offering”)
through Andes Capital Group, LLC (“Andes Capital,” or the “Intermediary”), in its capacity as a registered
broker-dealer (CIK No. 0001348811, SEC File No. 008-67202, FINRA CRD No. 139212). Information
about the Company is provided on the Offering Page maintained for this Offering by the Intermediary,
which is located at https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com and in Appendix 6 — Offering Page.

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can
afford to lose your entire investment. In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own
examination of the Company and the terms of the Offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or
regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of
this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission,” or the “SEC”) does not pass upon
the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any Offering document or literature. These securities are offered under an exemption
from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent
determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt
from registration.

You should rely only on the information contained in this Form C when making an investment. This Form
C does not purport to contain all of the information that may be required to evaluate this Offering, and
any recipient hereof should conduct its own independent analysis. The statements of the Company
contained herein are based on information believed to be reliable. No warranty can be made as to the
accuracy of such information or that circumstances have not changed since the date of this Form C. The
Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may have changed since
that date.

This Form C is submitted in connection with the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced
or used for any other purpose. As of the date hereof, this Offering is available for sale into all 50 states,
Washington D.C., and U.S. territories.

If applicable, any updates on the status of this Offering may be found at
https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com.
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Offering Summary

The Company

Company

Address

Company Website

Number of Employees

Chief Executive Officers

Form of Organization

State of Jurisdiction

Date of Formation

Fiscal Year End

Offering Website operated by the
Intermediary

The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

1000 Lincoln Drive 3A, Second floor
Marlton, New Jersey 08053

https://www.greenhouseofnj.com

Damon Pennington and Spencer-Carl Saint-Cyr

Limited Liability Company

New Jersey

April 29, 2020

December 31

https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com

Terms
Security Type Units of Class D membership interest
Unit Price $0.20

Target Offering Amount

Target number of securities offered

Maximum Amount

Maximum number of securities offered

Minimum Investment Amount per
Investor

Voting Rights

$10,000.00 (the “Target Offering Amount”)
50,000
$1,235,000.00 (the “Maximum Offering Amount”)

6,175,000

$200.00 (the “Minimum Investment Amount”)

None
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Registration Exemption Regulation Crowdfunding (“Regulation CF”)

Placement Agent Andes Capital Group, LLC

Attestation Regarding Eligibility

The Company attests that it will take appropriate steps to complete the following, either with internal

resources or through a third-party capital table management and/or accounting partner:

Monitor the issuance of the securities the Company offers and sells through the intermediary’s
platform;

Maintain a master security holder list reflecting the owners of those securities;

Maintain a transfer journal or other such log recording any transfer of ownership;

Effect the exchange or conversion of any applicable securities

Maintain a control book demonstrating the historical registration of those securities, and

Countersign or legend any physical certificates of those securities, if the securities are
certificated.

Provide all required tax documents to investors.

The Company has certified that all of the following statements are true for the Company:

Is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or the
District of Columbia;

Is not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934;

Is not an investment company, as defined in Section 3 of the Investment Company Act of 1940;

Is not ineligible to rely on this exemption under 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933 as a result
of a disqualification specified in Rule 503(a) of Regulation Crowdfunding.

Has not failed to file with the SEC or provide to investors, to the extent required, any ongoing
annual reports required by law during the two years immediately preceding the filing of this
Form C;

Is not a development stage company that (a) has no specific business plan or (b) has indicated
that its business plan is to engage in a merger or acquisition with an unidentified company or
companies;

Has not made any use of any written communication or broadcast script for testing the waters
either (1) under the authorization of Rule 241 within 30 days of the initial filing of the offering
statement, or (ii) under the authorization of Rule 206;



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

Is not currently subject to any bad actor disqualifications under any relevant U.S. securities
laws; and,

The Company or any of its predecessors have not failed to comply with ongoing reporting
requirements of Rule 202 of Regulation Crowdfunding.

The Company will file a report electronically with the Securities & Exchange Commission annually and

post the report on its website, no later than 120 days after the end of The Company’s fiscal year covered

by the report. Once posted the annual report can be obtained at https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com.

The Company shall continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:

the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

The Company has filed, since its most recent sale of securities pursuant to this part, at least
one annual report pursuant to this section and has fewer than 300 holders of record;

The Company has filed, since its most recent sale of securities pursuant to this part, the annual
reports required pursuant to this section for at least the three most recent years and has total
assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

the Company or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete
redemption of redeemable securities; or,

the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the Company certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that
it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form to be signed on its
behalf by a duly authorized person.

THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC

By

s/DAMON PENNINGTON

DAMON PENNINGTON

CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.
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s/SPENCER-CARL SAINT-CYR
SPENCER-CARL SAINT-CYR

MANAGER AND CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

APRIL 29, 2024

s/DAMON PENNINGTON
DAMON PENNINGTON

CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

APRIL 29, 2024
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The Company

Business Summary

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HISTORY

The Company is a New Jersey limited liability company formed on April 29, 2020 as AACCTPro LLC.
On June 27, 2023, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment to change its name to “The
Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC.”

MISSION OF THE COMPANY

The Company is building a recreational and medicinal cannabis brand focused on providing customers
with high-quality cannabis products and a unique experience. The Company’s mission is to elevate New
Jersey’s adult cannabis culture by introducing a sophisticated collection of premium cannabis and
cannabidiol (“CBD”) products and creating a refined setting that prioritizes cannabis comfort, education,
and personalized service. The Greenhouse Lifestyle’s curated selection of cannabis products
encompasses carefully cultivated strains, artisanal edibles, and cutting-edge wellness solutions, all
chosen to accommodate the diverse preferences of the Company’s clientele.

Beyond serving as a dispensary, the Company aspires to be a destination for those seeking to explore
the therapeutic potential of cannabis; the Company’s experienced team focuses on providing information
and resources for individuals on their cannabis health and wellness journeys.

The Company’s initial dispensary is set to open in summer 2024 in Southern New Jersey, a brief journey
from downtown Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The Company may open additional locations in the future.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES OF THE COMPANY

The Company is planning to offer multiple products and services within the recreational and medicinal
cannabis space, including:

e Wholesale cannabis products — an extensive range of bulk cannabis products in, including
flowers, concentrates, and edibles, designed for dispensaries and retail shops looking for
premium quality at competitive prices;

e Retail cannabis products — a curated selection of cannabis goods tailored for individual
consumers, featuring a variety of strains, edibles, tinctures, and topicals to cater to personal
preferences and needs;

e Cannabis accessories — an assortment of essential and innovate accessories, from
vaporizers and grinders to storage solutions, aimed at enhancing the cannabis consumption
experience;
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e Branded apparel — a line of high-quality, branded apparel that combines style with cannabis
culture, including t-shirts, hats, and hoodies for consumers wanting to express their affinity for
the Greenhouse Lifestyle brand; and

e Cannabis consumption lounge — a sophisticated space offering a safe and inviting
environment for adults to socialize and consume cannabis products, with expert staff on hand
to ensure a comfortable and informed experience.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT OF THE COMPANY

As the Company operates in the rapidly evolving cannabis industry, it is subject to various regulation at
both the federal and state level. In New Jersey, recreational cannabis has been legalized for residents
21 years of age or older. The New Jersey Cannabis Regulatory Commission (the “NJCRC”) provides
licensures for cannabis companies operating within New Jersey, and the Company has been granted a
Class 5 Retail License from the NJCRC.

Furthermore, the Company has implemented processes to ensure compliance and quality control in the
following settings:

e State-level regulation — the Company strictly follow New Jersey's operational, safety, and
product standards for cannabis products, including security measures, packaging and labeling
protocols, and rigorous product testing for purity and potency;

e Zoning and local compliance — the Company strives to ensure its operations align with local
municipal ordinances; the Company carefully selects locations that meet zoning requirements
while respecting community standards and sensitivities;

e Tax compliance — the Company has established accounting practices to account for state-
specific tax obligations, including sales and cannabis-specific taxes, with the goal of ensuring
transparent and accurate financial reporting;

e Employee training and licensing — the Company’s cannabis professionals are comprehensively
trained and licensed, as necessary, to uphold the highest standards in product knowledge, legal
compliance, and responsible sales techniques;

e Consumer Safety and Education — the Company prioritizes consumer education on safe
cannabis consumption, providing clear guidance on dosage and legal usage limits to foster a
responsible and informed customer base; and

e Privacy and Data Security — the Company recognizes the sensitive nature of its customers'
personal information, especially that of medical cannabis patients, and the Company has
implemented robust privacy policies and data security measures to protect customer
information.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As of the date of this Form C, an affiliate of the Company, SVN Points Lifestyle, LLC (the “Affiliate”),
has submitted applications to the U.S. Patent and Trademark Officer (the “USPTO”) for two trademarks
related to the name and the logo of the Company, which await examination. The Company may license
its trademarks from the Affiliate in the future.

MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’S PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company operates in Southern New Jersey, a short drive away from downtown Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania. According to MJBizDaily, in New Jersey, recreational marijuana sales are anticipated to
hit between $625 million and $775 million in 2024. The state has granted 56 medical cannabis business
licenses and issued 68 conditional licenses for recreational use, with a notable focus on addressing high
medical marijuana prices, which range from $350 to $500 per ounce. Currently, New Jersey has 117,000
registered medical marijuana patients.

According to Statista, in the United States, the cannabis industry is projected to exceed $40 billion in
revenue in 2024, reflecting significant growth and acceptance. In 2023, national support for legalization
has soared to 70%, indicating a shift towards broader acceptance of cannabis for both medical and
recreational purposes, according to Gallup.

Current stage and roadmap

The Company was awarded a New Jersey Cannabis Regulatory Commission Class 5 Retail License in
June 2023. The Company is planning to offer several products and services within the cannabis space,
including wholesale products, retail products, accessories, apparel, and a consumption lounge.

As of the date of this Form C, the Company has selected a site for the dispensary and had initial site
plans created. The Company expects construction of the dispensary to begin in summer of 2024 and
opening late 2024.

Competition

The Company has identified the following companies as providing products and services which compete
with those offered by the Company:

e Cannabist

e  Curaleaf
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e  Other smaller recreational dispensaries

The Company believes its products and services can be distinguished from those of its competitors; the
Company intends to provide a cannabis-consumption lounge alongside its comprehensive suite of
products, which the Company believes is a unique offering that sets the Company apart from other New
Jersey cannabis operators. Furthermore, the Company believes its convenient location, easily
accessible from downtown Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, is another advantage over its competition.

Principal Security Holders

% OF VOTING POWER

% OF VOTING POWER

NUMBER AND CLASS OF PRIOR TO SECURITY AFTER SECURITY

OWNER NAME OF HOLDER SECURITIES NOW HELD OFFERING OFFERING
. 491,875 units of Class

Damon Pennington o 49.56% 49.56%
A membership interest
. 491,875 units of Class

Spencer Carl Saint-Cyr 49.56% 49.56%

A membership interest

Directors and Officers of the Company

The officers of the Company (the “Officers”) are listed below, along with all positions for the past three
(3) years. The Company intends to hire a third-party executive services provider to fulfill certain

management positions, including Chief Financial Officer.

Officers

Name Spencer-Carl Saint-Cyr
Current Position and Title Manager and Co-Chief Executive Officer
Responsibilities Managing the Company’s operations

Dates of Service March 2020 — Present
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Principal Occupation Endodontist

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE IN THE PAST 3 YEARS

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OF EMPLOYER &

EMPLOYER TITLE RESPONSIBILITIES DATES

The Greenhouse Manag = Cannabis operator; March 2020 — Present
Lifestyle of New er responsibilities include managing

Jersey, LLC the Company’s operations

Precision Oral Surgery = Owner  Dental practice specializing in oral = 2012 — Present
surgery; responsibilities include
overseeing all aspects of the
practice, including patient care,
business operations, and staff
management

Precision Periodontics | Owner @ Dental practice specializing in 2012 — Present
periodontics; responsibilities
include overseeing all aspects of
the practice, including patient
care, business operations, and
staff management

Del-Mar Orthodontics Owner | Dental practice specializing in 2012 — Present
orthodontics; responsibilities
include overseeing all aspects of
the practice, including patient
care, business operations, and
staff management

Maestro Smiles Owner | Dental practice; responsibilities 2006 — Present
include overseeing all aspects of
the practice, including patient
care, business operations, and
staff management

Infinite Endodontics Owner | Dental practice specializing in 2000 — Present
endodontics; responsibilities
include overseeing all aspects of
the practice, including patient
care, business operations, and
staff management
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Name Damon Pennington
Current Position and Title President and Co-Chief Executive Officer
Responsibilities Overseeing the day-to-day business of the Company and

setting the strategic goals of the Company
Dates of Service March 2020 — Present

Principal Occupation President and Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE IN THE PAST 3 YEARS

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OF EMPLOYER &

EMPLOYER TITLE RESPONSIBILITIES DATES

The Greenhouse Chief Cannabis operator; March 2020 — Present
Lifestyle of New Execut = responsibilities include

Jersey, LLC ive overseeing the day-to-day

Officer = business of the Company and
setting the strategic goals of the
Company

Biographical Information

SPENCER-CARL SAINT-CYR

Dr. Spencer-Carl Saint-Cyr, D.M.D., embarked on his journey in dentistry with a strong foundation in
academia. Graduating from the University of Pennsylvania's School of Dental Medicine in 1997, he
exhibited leadership qualities as the Class President and Chief Resident during his postgraduate
residency in Endodontics at Nova Southeastern University. With a commitment to lifelong learning, Dr.
Saint-Cyr furthered his expertise through advanced education in General Dentistry at the University of
Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey. Throughout his illustrious career, he has held various roles, from
General Dentist to Endodontist, demonstrating a versatile skill set and dedication to patient care. Dr.
Saint-Cyr's passion for dentistry extends beyond clinical practice; he has served as a Clinical Associate
Professor at the University of Pennsylvania, where he imparted his knowledge to future generations of
dental professionals. Additionally, his entrepreneurial spirit led him to establish multiple successful dental
practices, including Infinite Endodontics, Precision Oral Surgery, Precision Periodontics, and Del-Mar
Orthodontics. Through his unwavering commitment to excellence and innovation, Dr. Saint-Cyr
continues to make significant contributions to the field of dentistry.
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DAMON PENNINGTON

Damon Pennington is a seasoned entrepreneur renowned for his adeptness in establishing and
managing successful ventures across diverse industries. Armed with a vision for innovation and a keen
business acumen, Damon has charted a remarkable trajectory in the entrepreneurial landscape. With a
dynamic approach to business development and strategic planning, he has spearheaded the creation of
numerous thriving enterprises, ranging from restaurants and delis to commercial real estate
development firms and government contracting companies. Damon's unwavering commitment to
excellence and his ability to identify and capitalize on emerging opportunities have cemented his
reputation as a trailblazer in the world of entrepreneurship. Through his visionary leadership and
relentless pursuit of excellence, Damon continues to leave an indelible mark on the business landscape,
inspiring aspiring entrepreneurs and seasoned professionals alike.

Board of Directors

Spencer-Carl Saint-Cyr and Damon Pennington comprise the Company’s board of directors (the
“Board”).

Manager of the Company

Spencer-Carl Saint-Cyr serves as the manager of the Company (the “Manager”). The Manager
conducts, manages, and controls the affairs and business of the Company. There is no fee paid to the
Manager by the Company for services rendered; however, the Manager is a beneficial owner of fifty
percent (50%) of the outstanding units of Class A membership interest and may participate in
distributions of net profits of the Company.

The Offering

Terms of Securities Offering

The Company is selling up to 6,175,000 Units of Class D membership interest through this Offering.

Price $0.20

Target Offering Amount $10,000.00

Target number of securities being offered 50,000



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC
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Maximum Offering Amount
Maximum number of securities being offered

Oversubscriptions

Deadline to reach the Target Offering
Amount

Minimum Investment Amount per investor

Minimum number of Units per investor

Voting Rights and Limitations

VOTING RIGHTS

The Units do not carry voting rights.

DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS

$1,235,000.00

6,175,000

Oversubscriptions will be accepted at the
discretion of the Intermediary or the Company,
not to exceed the Maximum Offering Amount.

April 28, 2025

$200.00

2,000

The Units carry distribution rights, subject to the terms of the Company’s Operating Agreement (see

Appendix 4 — Operating Agreement).

For each holder of Units, their “Unreturned Capital Contribution” will refer to the holder’s aggregate

capital contribution, with respect to their Units held, less the aggregate amount of distributions made to

such holder with respect to such holder’s Units.

The Company shall make distributions of net profit in the amounts and at the times determined by the

Manager (but no less frequently than annually) to all Members in the following order and priority:

o First, to each member holding units of Class C membership interest in proportion to their

respective Unreturned Capital Contributions, until the Unreturned Capital Contribution of each

such member has been reduced to zero;

e Second, to each member holding Units of Class D membership interest in proportion to their

respective Unreturned Capital Contributions, until the Unreturned Capital Contribution of each

such member has been reduced to zero; and
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e Thereafter, forty seven and one half percent (47.5%) to the members holding units of Class A
membership interest in proportion to their ownership of units of Class A membership interest,
twenty percent (20%) to the members holding units of Class B membership interest in proportion
to their ownership of units of Class B membership interest, twenty percent (20%) to the
members holding units of Class C membership interest in proportion to their ownership of units
of Class C membership interest, and the remaining twelve and one half percent (12.5%) to the
members holding Units of Class D membership interest in proportion to their ownership of Units
of Class D membership interest.

For example, illustrating how an investor’s Unreturned Capital Contribution would be reduced, if an
investor were to purchase $200.00 of Units of Class D membership interest, such investor’s Unreturned
Capital Contribution would initially be $200.00. If the investor were to receive one distribution of $50.00,
the distribution would reduce that investor’s Unreturned Capital Contribution to $150.00. Such investor’s
Unreturned Capital Contribution would be reduced by the amount of each subsequent distribution
received, until the investor’s Unreturned Capital Contribution reached zero.

Another example, illustrating how an investor would participate in the subsequent split of net profits,
once a holder of Units of Class D membership interest has had their Unreturned Capital Contribution
reduced to zero, distributions may be made to the investor proportionately, based on the number of Units
of Class D membership interest held by the investor compared to the total amount of Units of Class D
membership interest outstanding. As a class, the holders of Units of Class D membership interest would
split proportionately amongst members of the class, twelve and a half percent (12.5%) of net profits.

MODIFICATION OF TERMS

An affirmative vote of the majority of holders of units of Class A membership interest and holders of units
of Class C membership interest is required to amend the Company’s Certificate of Formation or
Operating Agreement, which could lead to the modification of the rights and terms of the Units by the
holders of units of Class A membership interest and holders of units of Class C membership interest.

DRAG-ALONG RIGHTS

In the event that holders of seventy-five percent (75%) of the outstanding units of Class A membership
interest, units of Class B membership interest, and units of Class C membership interest propose to
engage in a transaction involving the transfer of their units, then holders of the Units of Class D
membership interest shall be required to sell all of their Units of Class D membership interest held in
such transaction.

Please see Appendix 4 — Operating Agreement for more information regarding the rights and terms of
the Units.
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Restrictions on Transfer

The securities being offered may not be transferred by any purchaser of such securities during the one-
year period beginning when the securities were issued, unless such securities are transferred (i) to the
Company, (ii) to an accredited investor, (iii) as part of an offering registered with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, or (iv) to a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser
or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar
circumstance.

NOTE: the term “accredited investor” means any person who comes within any of the categories
set forth in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D, or who the seller reasonably believes comes within any
of such categories, at the time of the sale of the securities to that person.

The term “member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent” includes a child, stepchild,
grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-in-
law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law of the purchaser,
and includes adoptive relationships. The term “spousal equivalent” means a cohabitant
occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that of a spouse.

Investors may not transfer all or any portion of Units, unless such transfer is approved by the Manager
or made in accordance with the terms of the Operating Agreement (see Appendix 4 - Operating
Agreement).

Other Outstanding Securities

CLASS A, CLASS B, CLASS C, AND CLASS D UNITS OF MEMBERSHIP INTEREST

The Company has authorized 983,750 units of Class A membership interest, with all 983,750 units of
Class A membership interest outstanding. The Company has authorized 7,500 units of Class B
membership interest, with all 7,500 units of Class B membership interest outstanding. The Company
has authorized 8,750 units of Class C membership interest, with all 8,750 units of Class C membership
interest outstanding. There are 6,175,000 Units of Class D membership interest authorized, with none
currently issued or outstanding.

COMPARISON OF THE CLASSES OF UNITS OF MEMBERSHIP INTEREST

The units of Class A membership interest and the units of Class C membership interest carry voting
rights, while the units of Class B membership interest and the Units of Class D membership interest do
not carry voting rights.

The units of Class C membership interest and the Units of Class D membership interest both have
priority in the distribution of net profits of the Company over the units of Class A membership interest
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and the units of Class B membership interest. However, the units of Class C membership interest have
priority of the Units of Class D membership interest in the distribution of net profits of the Company.

Valuation of Securities Being Offered

PRE-MONEY VALUATION

The Company has set a pre-money valuation of $27,000,000.

VALUATION DETAILS

The Company bases its pre-money valuation on the distinctive business model and market potential of
the Company. The Company has arbitrarily set $0.20 as the price of one Unit of Class D membership
interest.

Other Exempt Offerings

On December 30, 2022, the Company issued 7,500 units of Class B membership interest in reliance of
the exemption from registration found within Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. The Company
did not raise proceeds from this offering and instead granted these units of Class B membership interest
in exchange for services rendered to the Company, including consulting and legal services.

Between July 17, 2023, and November 27, 2023, the Company issued 8,750 units of Class C
membership interest in reliance of the exemption from registration found within Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933. The Company raised $175,000.00 in proceeds from this offering, which were
used to fund the operating expenses of the Company.

Use of Proceeds

The Company intends to use the proceeds raised through the Offering (the “Proceeds”) as described
below; however, the Company shall retain full discretion over the allocation of the Proceeds raised, and
the actual use of the Proceeds may vary significantly compared to the description in this section.

IF TARGET OFFERING AMOUNT IF MAXIMUM OFFERING AMOUNT
REACHED REACHED
$ % $ %
Total Proceeds 10,000.00 100 1,235,000 100

Intermediary Fees 300.00 3 37,050.00 3
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Construction 5,900.00 59 728,650.00 59
Operating Expenses 1,600.00 16 197,600.00 16
Marketing 1,500.00 15 185,250.00 15
Inventory 600.00 6 74,100.00 6
Legal 100.00 1 12,350.00 1
Total Use of Net Proceeds 10,000.00 100 1,235,000.00 100

INTERMEDIARY FEES

The Company shall pay to Andes Capital (the Intermediary) a fee totaling three percent (3%) of the
Proceeds. See the subsection titled “Remuneration for Broker-Dealer” below for more information.

CONSTRUCTION

The Company anticipates that approximately fifty-nine percent (59%) of the Proceeds will be devoted to
construction costs, including laying asphalt, mechanical/electrical/plumbing, and construction design
and engineering. The Company has completed an initial site plan; however, construction on the
dispensary has yet to begin. The Company anticipates construction will begin in July 2024 and estimates
a late 2024 opening of the dispensary.

OPERATING EXPENSES

The Company anticipates that approximately sixteen percent (16%) of the Proceeds will be used for
operating expenses, including hiring and training a skilled team to provide high-quality customer service,
establishing comprehensive training programs, and developing operational efficiencies.

MARKETING

The Company anticipates that approximately fifteen percent (15%) of the Proceeds will be spent on
advertising and marketing the Company’s products and services, including development of a robust
customer relationship management (“CRM”) system, targeted advertising campaigns, establishing
strategic collaborations, supporting payment platform integrations for customer convenience, enabling
content creation for digital and traditional media, and organizing events to engage and expand the
Company’s customer base.



20
The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

INVENTORY

The Company anticipates that approximately six percent (6%) of the Proceeds will be used to purchase
inventory, including premium cannabis-flower varieties, apparel, and essential accessories. Additionally,
the Company intends to purchase high-quality packaging to ensure products not only maintain their
integrity, but also align with the Company’s intended upscale image.

LEGAL

The Company anticipates that approximately one percent (1%) of the Proceeds will be used for its legal
expenses.

Testing the Waters

The Company has not made use of written communication or broadcast to test the waters.

Delivery of Securities

DELIVERING SECURITIES TO INVESTORS

The Company has entered into an agreement with Andes Capital, a FINRA-compliant, regulated
broker-dealer, to conduct the Offering. Securities will be delivered via electronic transmission.

REMUNERATION FOR BROKER-DEALER

The Company will pay to the Intermediary a fee equal to three percent (3%) of the Proceeds raised
through the Offering. This fee is payable upon each closing of the Offering (a “Close”). The fee will be
taken directly from the Company’s third-party escrow account.

Additionally, the Company has paid the Intermediary a one-time fee of $750.00 to cover due diligence
and other anticipated expenses in connection with this Offering.

Risk Factors

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
Offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.
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In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the Company and the terms of the Offering, including the merits and risks involved.
These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have
not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of
any securities offered or the terms of the Offering, nor does it pass upon the
accuracy or completeness of any Offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent
determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

The Company is required to identify risks that are specific to its business and
financial condition; the risks discussed herein may or may not be unique to the
Company. Like other companies, the Company is subject to general economic risks,
as well as industry-specific risks and situational risks. These include risks relating
to economic downturns, political and economic events, and others. Additionally,
early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed companies.
You should consider the general risks as well as specific risks when deciding to
make an investment.

Economic Risk Factors

MARKET, INFLATION, AND INTEREST RATE

Any investment is subject to general market risk. Market risk is the impact of the overall condition of
financial markets. When the markets are doing well, that sentiment generally carries over to individual
securities - and vice versa. Geopolitical, economic, and other uncertainties can impact the markets
significantly - creating increased volatility. Generally, volatile markets can be a cause for reduced
valuations of companies and investments. Inflation and interest rate risk can operate separately or in
tandem. Interest rate risk impacts a business by potentially increasing their costs to do business e.g.,
borrowing costs If you couple this rise in rates due to inflation, then the value of the dollars the Company
earns is worth less. Not all businesses can pass on higher costs to their customers. And this increases
the possibility that customers may be feeling the pinch and pull back from purchases.
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FORCE MAJEURE

There is the possibility that a natural disaster or other event beyond the control of the Company could
cause damage to the equipment or progress of projects that the Company is involved in. This may cause
unexpected replacement costs and negatively impact financial returns for the Company. While the
equipment would be subject to insurance policies, during the construction period, and during the
operating term, and these policies may cover replacement costs for potential damage, all possible
damage may or may not be covered by the insurance company, depending on what insurance is secured
for each project.

COVID-19

COVID-19 or similar public health emergencies may impact the Company’s ability to fulfill contracts or
otherwise function as intended. Disruptions to the Company’s contractors, suppliers, and/or access to
building premises could result in additional unexpected expenses. Vendors may experience unexpected
financial difficulties given unemployment rates and illness amongst employees and thus default on or
delay their contractual obligations which in turn would impact the Company’s ability to meet its
obligations. Suppliers and contractors in certain impacted industries may lose their jobs or remain
unemployed, which could impact their ability to make payments or meet objectives.

Industry Risk Factors

CANNABIS IS A FEDERALLY BANNED SUBSTANCE

While there is a trend toward legalization of cannabis among certain states across the United States,
cannabis remains a Schedule 1 controlled substance under federal law. Federal penalties for violations
may include prison time and/or substantial fines. Until the legal status of cannabis is changed at the
federal level, there exists a risk that the Company’s key personnel, suppliers, and customers could be
subject to severe federal penalties related to enforcement of federal narcotics laws.

INCONSISTENT REGULATION OF CANNABIS

As there are different regulatory frameworks governing cannabis across the United States, at the federal,
state, and local level, there is a risk the Company fails to comply with all applicable cannabis laws, which
could adversely affect the financial performance of the Company. Furthermore, the Company’s suppliers
and customers may fail to comply with all applicable cannabis laws, which could harm the ability of the
Company to make sales and/or purchases, thereby adversely affecting the Company’s finances.

CANNABIS COMPANIES AND FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY COURTS

Federal bankruptcy protections have been denied to cannabis companies in the past. In the event the
Company sought federal bankruptcy protections, there is a risk that the Company would be unable to
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secure such bankruptcy protections, which could harm the value of equity holders’ investments in the
Company.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING LAWS AND OTHER REGULATIONS

The Company is required to comply with federal anti-money laundering laws. As a cannabis-related
business, there is a risk that key personnel of the Company could be prosecuted for their activities
related to cannabis under federal laws. Compliance with such regulations may be expensive for the
Company and negatively impact the Company’s financial performance.

Company Risk Factors

LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY

As an early-stage startup company, the Company has a limited operating history, and the Company
cannot guarantee that it will meet the objectives set at the date of this Offering. There can be no
guarantee that the Company will achieve profitability.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY MAY DEVOTE TIME TO OTHER ENTERPRISES

The Company’s management may be involved in other business activities, related or unrelated, to the
Company’s business. The Company’s management will devote a reasonable amount of time and effort
to the Company to fulfill their fiduciary duty to the Company, in the discretion of the management.

IF INSUFFICIENT FUNDS ARE RAISED, THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE ABLE TO IMPLEMENT
ITS BUSINESS PLAN

If the Company is unable to raise sufficient funds in order to enact its business plan, the Company may
not be able to build its planned dispensary and may wind up operations as a result.

Offering Risk Factors

LIMITED TRANSFERABILITY OF THE SECURITIES

Any Units purchased through this Offering will be subject to limitations of transfer. This means that the
Unit that you purchase cannot be resold for a period of one year. There may be additional restrictions
limiting the resale of Units purchased through this Offering.
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ILLIQUID INVESTMENT

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the twelve (12) months
following your investment, there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities you receive.
More importantly, there is no established market for these securities and there may never be one. As a
result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer.

FUTURE FINANCING

The Company may raise additional capital, modify growth plans, or take other actions. Issuing more
equity may require bringing on more investors and securing more investors could require pricing the
Company’s Units below the price offered in this Offering. If so, your investment could lose value as a
result of additional dilution. Additionally, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership percentage
and/or voting power could decrease with the addition of more investors. Furthermore, the Company may
sell securities to investors in the future with preferences or rights advantageous compared to the Units
offered herein. There is a risk that dilution would reduce the overall portion of distributions an investor in
this Offering receives.

MANAGEMENT DISCRETION AS TO USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of its
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the Proceeds of this Offering. The
Use of Proceeds described herein is an estimate based on the Company’s current business plan. The
Company, however, may find it necessary or advisable to reallocate portions of the net Proceeds
reserved for one category to another, and will have broad discretion in doing so.

PROJECTIONS: FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION STATEMENTS

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding the Company’s anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best estimate of the probable
results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by our independent accountants. These
projections will be based on assumptions which management believes are reasonable. Some
assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such
variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

THE OFFERING ALLOWS ROLLING CLOSINGS

Once the Target Offering Amount is met, the Company may request that the Intermediary instruct the
escrow agent to disburse Offering funds to the Company. At that point, investors whose subscription
agreements have been accepted will become investors in the Company. All early-stage companies are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes to be made
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to the terms of the Offering, or to companies' businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice.
When such changes happen during the course of an Offering, the Company must file an amendment to
the Form C with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose subscriptions have
already been accepted, however, will have no such right.

NO TAX ADVICE

No assurance or warranty of any kind is made with respect to any tax consequences relating to an
investment in the Company. Each prospective Investor should consult with and rely solely upon the
advice of his, her or its own tax advisers.

UNDERCAPITALIZATION

In order to achieve the Company’s near and long-term goals, such as construction of its dispensary, the
Company may need to procure funds in addition to the amount raised in the Offering. There is no
guarantee the Company will be able to raise such funds on acceptable terms or at all. If the Company is
not able to raise sufficient capital in the future, it may not be able to execute the Company’s business
plan, the Company’s continued operations will be in jeopardy and the Company may be forced to cease
operations and sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of the Company’s remaining assets, which
could cause an investor to lose all or a portion of his or her investment. As a result, precisely planning
the Company’s expected financial results is difficult and impacts its forecasted need for capital.

RISKS RELATED TO MINORITY OWNERSHIP

Investors in this Offering will not have an input in all decisions made by the Company, its Manager, and/or
the management team. Investors in this Offering may have fewer rights than other investors.

RISKS RELATED TO CERTAIN CORPORATE ACTIONS

Events such as: corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, asset-based borrowing, additional
issuances of securities, and Unit repurchases, may disproportionately affect minority members. The
effects may include, but may not be limited to, the dilution of the value of Units, and the loss of the
holder’s voting rights, if any were available.

CANCELLATION RESTRICTIONS

Once you make an investment commitment for a crowdfunding offering, you will be committed to making
that investment, unless you cancel your commitment within a specified period of time.
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LIMITED DISCLOSURE

The Company may disclose only limited information about the Company, its business plan, the Offering,
and its anticipated Use of Proceeds, among other things. The Company is also only obligated to file
information annually regarding its business, including financial statements, and certain companies may
not be required to provide annual reports after the first twelve (12) months. A publicly listed company, in
contrast, is required to file annual and quarterly reports and promptly disclose certain events —
continuing disclosure that you can use to evaluate the status of your investment. In contrast, an Investor
may have only limited continuing disclosure about their crowdfunding investment.

UNIT PRICE ARBITRARILY SET BY THE COMPANY

The price of the Units of Class D membership interest offered has been arbitrarily established by the
Company. The Company may change the method of valuation of the Units of Class D membership
interest in the future.

NO GUARANTEED DISTRIBUTIONS

The Company intends to pay to holders of Units of Class D membership interest distributions, at least
annually. However, there can be no guarantee that the Company will generate sufficient cash flows to
make distributions to investors on a regular basis or at all. In the event of financial downturns in the
Company’s operating results, unanticipated expenditures, or other factors, the Company may be unable
to pay distributions of net profits, including any Unreturned Capital Contribution, to its investors.

Investing Process

To invest in an offering, Investors must go to the investment platform at
https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com. The Intermediary collects certain personal information to run a
Know-Your-Customer and Anti-Money Laundering check on each investor at no cost to the investor. An
individual must be 18 years of age to invest. Investors that are non-United States residents may not be
able to participate in the Offering due to local securities laws.

You will also need to sign a Subscription Agreement for the investment you have selected in order to
purchase the Securities and select your payment method. The Purchaser’s funds for payment will be
deducted and then held in escrow with East West Bank, an independent escrow agent, during the raise.



27

The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

Subscription Agreement

Subscription Agreements are an investor’s application to participate in the crowdfunding offering and
include the terms of the investment attached as Appendix 5 — Subscription Agreement. It is a two-way
agreement between the Company to sell and the investor to purchase an agreed-upon amount of
securities at an agreed-upon price. A Subscription Agreement is typical with private security offerings
like those under Regulation Crowdfunding. The Subscription Agreement is not binding on the Company
until accepted by the Company, which reserves the right to reject, in whole or in part, in its sole and
absolute discretion, any subscription. If the Company rejects all or a portion of any subscription, the
applicable prospective Purchaser’s funds for the investment amount will be returned without interest or
deduction. Certain payment methods may have additional fees that will be disclosed at time of purchase;
those additional fees will be returned to the investor if their transaction is cancelled.

Progress During an Offering

The Intermediary will display on the Company’s Offering Page an investment progress bar and updates
regarding the Offering. For those with investment commitments in the offering already, you will receive
certain email notifications from the Intermediary.

Target Offering Amount and Maximum Offering Amount

The Company has selected a minimum Target Offering Amount and a Maximum Offering Amount. If the
total amount of investor commitments does not meet or exceed the Target Offering Amount by the
deadline for the Offering (“Close”), the Offering is cancelled, no securities will be sold, investors will
receive a full refund of their investment commitment, with no interest or deductions, and the Company
will not receive funds.

Cancellation

Investors may cancel an investment commitment for any reason up until 48 hours prior to the deadline
of the Offering period (a “Close”). The Close date can be found in the Offering materials and on the
Company’s Offering page at https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com. For example, if the deadline is
December 24, you can cancel until December 22 at 11:59 PM Eastern time. Once within the 48 hours of
the Close date, you can no longer cancel your investment commitment, even if your investment
commitment was submitted within the 48-hour time period.
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CANCELLATION PROCESS & CANCELLING A COMMITMENT TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified in these
Offering materials.

The Intermediary will notify investors when the Target Offering Amount has been met.

If the Company reaches the Target Offering Amount prior to the deadline identified in the Offering
materials, it may close the Offering early if it provides notice about the new Offering deadline at least
five business days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require and
extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment).

If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the Offering
deadline, the funds will be released to the Company upon closing of the Offering and the investor will
receive securities in exchange for his or her investment.

If an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to
this Offering, the investor’s investment commitment will be cancelled and the committed funds will be
returned.

You cancel your investment commitment directly on the Offering page at
https://investgreenhouselifestyles.com. If you need any assistance at any point, please reach out to the
Intermediary’s team at investments@andescap.com.

Related-Party Transactions

A related party is defined as: any director or officer of the Company; any person who is, as of the most
recent practicable date but no earlier than 120 days prior to the date the offering statement or report is
filed, the beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the Company's outstanding voting equity
securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; if the Company was incorporated or organized within
the past three years, any promoter of the Company; any member of the family of any of the foregoing
persons, which includes a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or
spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or
sister-in-law, and shall include adoptive relationships. The term spousal equivalent means a cohabitant
occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that of a spouse.

There have been no related transactions between the Company and a related party over the past twelve
(12) months.
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Financial Condition

This section contains certain forward-looking financial statements and/or projections. Actual results
could differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking statements and projections as a
result of various factors, including the risks typically associated with this type of enterprise and
changes in the market. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements and projections that may be made to reflect events or
circumstances that occur after the date of this Form C or to reflect the occurrence of any unanticipated
events.

Operating History

The Company was organized as a New Jersey limited liability company in 2020, is pre-revenue, and has
a limited operational history.

Current Condition and Historical Results

PRE-RAISE LIQUIDITY & CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s initial operating costs have been funded by the Officers of the Company and its Class
C members.

POST-RAISE LIQUIDITY & DEPENDENCE ON THE OFFERING

The Company anticipates it will use the Proceeds raised in this Offering to pay construction, operating
expenses, marketing, inventory, and legal expenses.

As an early-stage startup business, the Company believes its future financial performance will depend
on the success of the current planned projects of the Company. The Company expects to begin
generating revenue upon completion and opening of its flagship dispensary.

The Company does not believe its success is contingent upon the success of this Offering; however, the
Company believes the Offering is a crucial part of completing the present goals of the Company. If the
management of the Company deems it necessary, the Company may raise funds, in addition to the
Proceeds raised through this Offering, to support its planned operations.
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Financial Statements

MOST RECENT FISCAL YEAR-END PRIOR FISCAL YEAR-END

(2022 UNAUDITED) (2021 UNAUDITED)
Total Assets: — $2,450
Cash & Cash Equivalents: — $2,450
Accounts Receivable: — —
Short-term Debt: $25 —
Long-term Debt: — —
Revenues/Sales: — —
Cost of Goods Sold: $2,475 $7,550
Taxes Paid: — -
Net Income: $(2,475) $(7,550)

Outstanding Indebtedness

As of the date of this Form C, the Company does not have any outstanding debt.

Financial Statements

See Appendix 1 — Financial Statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein contain forward-looking
statements and are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical
fact or relating to present facts or current conditions included in this Form C are forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements give the Company’s current reasonable expectations and pro-
jections relating to its financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance and
business. You can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts. These statements may include words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“project,” “plan,

[INTH

intend,” “believe,” “may,” “should,” v

can have,” “likely” and other words and terms of
similar meaning in connection with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial

performance or other events.
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The forward-looking statements contained in this Form C and any documents incorporated by reference
herein or therein are based on reasonable assumptions the Company has made in light of its industry
experience, perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other
factors it believes are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and consider this Form C, you
should understand that these statements are not guarantees of performance or results. They involve
risks, uncertainties (many of which are beyond the Company’s control) and assumptions. Although the
Company believes that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you
should be aware that many factors could affect its actual operating and financial performance and cause
its performance to differ materially from the performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements.
Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize or should any of these assumptions prove
incorrect or change, the Company’s actual operating and financial performance may vary in material
respects from the performance projected in these forward-looking statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by the Company in this Form C or any documents incorporated by
reference herein or therein speaks only as of the date of this Form C. Factors or events that could cause
the Company’s actual operating and financial performance to differ may emerge from time to time, and
itis not possible for the Company to predict all of them. The Company undertakes no obligation to update
any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or
otherwise, except as may be required by law.

Additional Information

Involvement in Legal and Regulatory Proceedings

The Company is not involved in any ongoing legal or regulatory proceedings.

Other Material Information

Neither the Company nor its management are subject to the disqualification provisions of Rule 503(a) of
Regulation Crowdfunding. Furthermore, neither the Company nor its Chief Executive Officer have any
events to disclose under Rule 201(u) of Regulation Crowdfunding.
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Appendix 1 — Financial Statements

AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of New
Jersey)

Financial Statements and Report

December 31, 2022 and 2021
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TESSERACT
ADVISORY
GROUP

Independent Accountant's Review Report

To Management of:
AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey)

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of
Mew lersey) (the Company), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the
related statements of income, changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the finandal statemnents. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management’s financial data and making inguiries of the Company's management. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulzated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements
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for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

We gre required to be independent of AACCTPRO LLC (drb/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey) (the
Company] and ta meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
related to our reviews.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Mote 3 to the finandal statements, the Company has relied on owner
financing to fund operations and has yet to begin generating revenue and these conditions create
uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s evaluation of the
events and conditions and management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the cutcome of this uncertainty.
Our conclusion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Z&aﬁm?‘qﬁgz/m%y ﬁw L7

Tesseract Advisory Group LLC
OWINGS MILLS, MD
MNovember 2, 2023
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Balance Sheet (Unaudited)
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021

Mote 2022 2021
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents le 5 - 3 2,450
Total Current Assets - 2,450
Total Assets - 2,450
Liabilities & Members’ Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25 -
Total Current Liabilities 5 -
Total Liabilities 25 -
Members’ Equity (25) 2,450
Total Liabilities & Members® Equity % - B 2,450

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Statement of Income (Unaudited)
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Operating Expenses
Architecture £ 750 0% 2,000
Security - 5,000
Bank fees 1725 550
2475 7.550

Total Operating Expenses
Met Income (Loss)

g {2,475) s {7.350)

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Statement of Changes in Members’ Equity (Unaudited)
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Total Members'
Equity

Balance at January 1, 2021 -
Met income (loss) % (7,550}
Owner contributions 10,000
Balance at December 31, 2021 2450
Met income (loss) (2,475}
Balance at December 31, 2022 3 (25}

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Met income (loss)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities, net of effects of
businesses acquired

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Met Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

$ (2475) s {7,550}

(2,450) {7.350)

Contributions from owners - 10,000
Met Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities - 10,000
Met Increase {Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash (2,450) 2450
Cash, cash eguivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of year 2,450 -

3 - % 2450

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at End of Year

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Nature of operations

AACCTPRO LLC {d/bsfa Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey) (the Company) was established to become

a vertically integrated cannabis company providing cultivation, manufacturing and dispensary operations
in the State of Mew Jersey senving the tri-state area of of southern New Jersey, Philadelphia and
Delaware.

The Company was formed as a limited liability company in the State of New Jersey on April 29, 2020.

b. Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America ["GAAPT) as detailed in the Financial Accounting Standards Board's
Accounting Standards Codification. The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

.. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

d. Fair value measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (exit price) and such principles also establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs used to measure fair value using the following definitions (from highest to lowest priority):

» Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

» Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets and lizbilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active;
or other inputs that are cbservable or can be corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
ather means.

» Level 3 - Prices or valuation techniques requiring inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable.

e. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents includes short-term investments and highly liguid investments in money
market instruments which are carried at the lower of cost and market value with a maturity date of three
months or less from the acquisition date. These are valued at cost which approximates market value. As
of December 31, 2022 and 2021 cash consisted of funds held in business checking accounts in the United
States.

f. Income taxes

The Company is a limited liability company taxed as a pass through entity. The accompanying financials
statements do not incdlude a provision, benefit, liability, or refund receivable for federal and state income
taxes because the members are taxed individually on their share of the limited liability company
earnings.

g. Comprehensive income

The Company does not have any comprehensive income itemns other than net income.

2. Commitments and contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in
the normal course of business. As of December 31, 2022, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that
could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company’s operations.

3. Going concem

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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AACCTPRO LLC (d/b/a Greenhouse Lifestyle of Mew Jersey)
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the realization
of assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. As shown in the accompanying
financial statements, the Company has relied on owner contributions to fund operations and has yet to
begin generating revenue. Those factors and conditions create a substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for the year following the date the financial statements are available to
be issued. Management of the Company has evaluated these conditions and has proposed a plan to raise
capital via a crowdfunding campaign. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and meet its
obligations as they become due is dependent on management’s ability to successfully implement the plan.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary if the Company is unable
to continue as a going concern.

4, Subsequent evenis
On June 27, 2023 the Company changed its name to The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC.
hManagement evaluated all activity of the Company through Movember 2, 2023 (the issuance date of the

financial statements) and concluded that no subseguent events have occurred that would require
recagnition in the financial statements or disclosure in the related notes to the financial statements.

10

See independent accountant’s review report. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal
statemnents.
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Appendix 2 — Certificate of Formation

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF REVENUE AND ENTERPRISE SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

AACCTPRO LLC
0450485540

The above-named DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMEANY was duly filed in

accordance with New Jersey State Law on 04/29/2020 and was assigned
identification numkber 0450485540. Following are the articles that

constitute its original certificate.

1.

2,

Name:

LARCCTERD LLC
RBegistered Agent:
SPENCEER SAINT-CYR
Registered Office:
1000 LINCOLN DRIVE ELST

SECOND FLOOR
MARLTOM, NEN JERSEY 08053

Business FPurpose:

LLL LALWFUL PURPOSES, INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL CLERNING RND SREMITATION SERWVICES FOR

MEDICAL OFFICES +

Duration:
DERPETUERL

Effective Date of thisz Filing is:
04s25/2020

Members/Managers:
SEENCER SAINT-CYR

1025 RIVERTON RORD
MDORESTOWN, NEW JERSEY OROS7

DEMON PENNINGTON
4 ROYAL COURT
VCORHEES, NEW JERSEY (0B043

Main Buosiness Address:
1000 LINCOLN DRIVE EAST
SECOND FLOOR

MARLTON, WEW JERSEY 08053

Signatures:

MRTRN SHMUEL
LOTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Continued on next page ...

Page 1 of 2
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NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF REVENUE AND ENTERPRISE SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

AACCTPRO LLC
0450485540

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I have
heveunto ser my hand and
affixed my Gfficial Seal
26th day of April, 2020

(g P N

Elizabeth Maker Muoio
State Treasurer

Cortificee Nambior - 4100400167
Fieifl sir zvsifinne oo o
hstmrshow riste ol an TTR_SeoalingCen TR Wieride_Cotiam

Page 2 of 2
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Appendix 3 — Certificate of Amendment

State of New Jersey
Department of the Treasury

New Jersey Division of Revenue & Enterprice Services Divisien of Revenue & Enterprise Services
. Business Emendments
Certificate Of Amendment Filed
NS4 42:3C19 Validati Humb 4212445446
. . . . alidation er:
New Jersey Limited Liability Company Act 0E/27/23 22:03:53

Verify &his cartificace caline =&
htepE: S wwwl . seace . nl. w3 /TYTE_FeancingCare/JaF/Vasicy Cart.dip

This Limited Liability Company filed with the Diwvisicon of Rewenue and
Enterprige Services to amend its Certificate of Formation. The filer is
respongible for ensuring strict compliance with NJSA 42:2C, the Bevised Uniform
New Jergey Limited Lisbkility Company Act.
1. Name of Limited Lisbkility Company: AACCTPRO LLC
2. Business ID Humber: 0450435540
3. AZmendments:

Article 1, Business Name is amended az follows:

Previcous Wame: RRCCTPRO LLC
Emended Wame: THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC

Article 4, the Business Purpcae is amended to the feollowing:

THE SALE OF PFRODUCTS AND SEEVICES AND THE CAMMABIS INDUSTEY

The undersigned represent(s) that this filing complies with State law as
detailed in WJSA 42:2C and that they are authorized to sign this form on behalf
ocf the NJ Limited Ligbkility Company on June 27, 2023.

Signature
DREMON PEWMINGTCN
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Appendix 4 — Operating Agreement

AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
OPERATING AGREEMENT OF
THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY IL.C

This LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™), Df
THE GEEENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC (the "Company") by and among the Comp
and the members set forth on Exhibit A (each a “Member” and collectively, the “Members b sh:a]l
effective as April 23, 2024 (the “Effective Date™).

WHEEEAS, the Company was formed umder the laws of the State of New Jersey by the
filing of a Certificate of Formation with the New Jerzey Department of the Treasury, Divizion of Revenue
and Enterprize Services (the “Divizien™) (the “Certificate of Formation™) pursuant to and in accordance
with the New Jersey Revised Uniform Limited Liability Company Act, as amended from time to time (the
“RULLCA™) on Apnl 29, 2020;

WHEREAS, the Memberz desire to set forth their respective nghts and obligations in
respect of a limited lability company formed under the Act on the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agresment;

WHEREAS, the original Agreement provided that it may be altered or modified upon the
approval of the Class A Members; and

WHEREAS, the Members are entering into this Agreement to document and restate the terms
and conditions under which the Company will operate and the Members intend that this Agreement shall
supersede and replace the original linuted liability Apreement of the Company in its entirety.

NOW, THEREFORE, i consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto sat forth their agreement as follows:

ARTICLET
CERETAIN DEFINITIONS

1.1, Certain Defined Terms. As used m this Agreement, in addihon to the terms
defined elsewhere herein, the following terms have the meanings specified below:

“Act” shall mean the RULLCA.

“Affiliate”™ of, or a Person “affiliated™ with, a specified Person, means a Person
that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, Controls, 13 Controlled by, or is under
common Control with, the Person or entity specified.

“Apreement” shall have the meaming set forth m the Preamble.
“Applicable Law™ means all applicable provizions of
A Constitutions, treaties, statutes, laws (including the commoen law), rules,
regulations, decrees, ordinances, codes, proclamations, declarations, or orders of any Governmental
Authomity;
E. Any consents or approvals of any Governmental Authority; and
2
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C. Any orders, decisions, advisory or interpretative opinions, mjunctions,
Judgments, awards, decrees of, or agreements with, any Governmental Authority.

D. “Bankruptey Action” means, with rezpect to any Person, if such Person (z)
makes an azsignment for the benefit of creditors, (1) files a voluntary petition in bankruptey, (c) is adjudged

or meolvent, or has entered agamst it an order for relief mn any bankruptcy or msolvency

proceedings, (d) files a petition or answer seeking for itself any recrganization, arrangement, composition,
readjustment, liquidation or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation, () files an answer or other
pleading admitting or failing to contest the material a]leganuns of 2 petition filed against it in any
proceeding of this nature, (f) seeks, consents to or acquiesces i the appointment of a trustee, recerver or
hiqudator of the Perzon or of all or any substantial part of its properties, or (g) if within one hundred twenty
(120) days after the commencement of any procesding against the Person seeking reom;amzanﬂn,
arrangement. composition, readjustment, llqmdatmn or sinular relief under any statute, law or regulation,
the proceeding has not been dismizsed, or if within one hundred twenty 120y days a.ﬂer the appommntment
without such Person's conzent or scquisscence of a trustes, receiver or liquidator of such Person or of all or
any substantial part of its properhies, the appomntment 13 not vacated or stayed, or within one undred twenty
(120) days after the expiration of any such stay, the appointment 15 not vacated.

“EBA” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.1; provided that references
herein to the BBA shall inclede any comparable provizions of state, local or non-T78. tax law.

“Book Value™ means with respect to any asset, the asset’s adjusted basis for federal
income tax purposes, except as follows:

(A)  The mtial Book Value of any asset contmibuted (or deemed contributed)
to the Company shall be the gross fair market value of such asset at the time of such contnibution;

(B)  The Book Values of all of the Company’s assets shall be adjusted to equal
their Iespe::ti!.‘e gross fair market values (taking Cede Section 7701(g) into account), as of the following
times: (1) the acquisition of an additicnal Memhersh.lp Interest in the Company by any new or existing
Memhermemhangeformmethauade minimiz capital contribution; (it) the djstnl:mtmnh the Company
to a Member of more than a de minimis samount of Company property as consideration for an Membership
Imterest in the Company; (iif) the liquidation of the Company within the mezning of Regulations Section
L704- 106 20010(g); (1v) the grant of an imterest in the Company (other than a de minimis interest) as
consideration for the provision of services to or for the benefit of the Company by an existing Member
acting in a partner capacity, or by a new Member acting in a partner capacity or in anticipation of becoming
a Member; (v) the issuance by the Company of a non- compensatory option (as such term iz defined in
Remﬂanous Section 1.761-3(B)(2)) other than an opticn to acquire a de minimiz mterest in the Company;
and (vi) at such other times as determined by Manzgmg Member; provided, however, that the adjustments
pursuznt to clauses (i), (1i), (v) and (v) above shall be made Dﬂ.l'l if Managing Member determines that
such adjustments are necessary or appropriate to reflect the relative economic interests of the Members in
the Company after consultztion with the other Members;

(C)  The Book Value of any item of Company assets distnbuted (or deemed
distributed) by the Company to any Member shall be adjusted mmediately pricr to such distnbution to
equal the gross fair market value (talang Code Section 7701(g) into account) of such asset as of the date of
distribution; and

(D) The Book Values of Company assets shall tzke mto account anv
3d]u5t|:uﬂlts to the adjusted basis of any asset of the Company pursuant to Section 734 or Section 743 of
the Code in determining such asset’s Book Value in a manner consistent with Regulations Section 1.704-
T(BH2IEem).
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If the Book Value of &n asset has been determined or adjusted pursuant to clanse
(1), (1) or (iv) above, such Book Value shall thereafter be adjusted in the same manner as would the asset's
adjusted basiz for federal income tax purposes, except that Depreciation shall be computed bazed on the
aszet's Book Value as so determined, rather than on its adjusted tax basis.

“Business Day” means anv day other than Saturday, Sunday, any dav that is a legal
holiday in the State of New Jerzey, or any other day on which the banking mstitutions in New Jerzey are
authorized to close.

“Capital Account” shall have the meaning set forth i Section 4.1
“Capital Contributicn™ means any contribution made by 2 Member to the capital
of the Company in accordance with this Agreement.

“Certificate of Formation™ shall mean the Certificate of Formation for the
Company, as filed with the State of New Jersey on April 29, 2020,

"Class A Member” shall mean a Member that holds Class A Units.

"Clazs A Units” means the Membership Interests having any privileges,
preference, duties, liabilities, obligations, and rights that are specified with respect to "Class A Unitz" in
this Agreement.

"Class B Member" means a Member that holds Class B Units.

"Clazs B Units” mezns the Membership Interests having any privileges,
preference, doties, liabalities, cbhgations, and nights that are specified with respect to "Class B Umts" in
thiz Agreement.

"Class C Member" means a Member that holds Class C Units.

"Clazs C Units” means the Membership Interests having any privileges,
preference, duties, liabilities, cbligations, and rights that are specified with respect to "Class C Units" in
this Agreement.

"Class D Member" means a Member that holds Class D Units.

"Clazs D Units" means the Membership Interests having any privileges,
preference, duties, liabilities, obligations, and rights that are specified with respect to "Class D Units" in
this Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, az amended.

“Company” means the limited liabality company formed pursuant to the Certificate
of Formation and poverned by the terms of thiz Apreement

“Contrel” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or
cause the direction of the management and policies of a person or entity, which power may be subject to
“major decision” approval nghts in favor of a third party, whether such power 15 through the ownership of
securities, by contract or otherwize.

“Depreciation” means, for each Fiscal Year, zn amount equal to the depreciation,
amortization, or other cost recovery deduction allewable for federal income tax purposes with respect to zn

4
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asset for such Fiscal Year, except that (1) with respect to any asset the Book Value of which differs from its
adjusted tax basis for federal income tax purposes at the beginning of such Fiscal Year and which difference
13 being eliminated by use of the “Temedial method™ as defined by Section 1.704-3(d) of the Regulations,

Depreciation for such Fiscal Year shall be the amount of Book Value recovered for such Fiscal Year under
the rules prescribed by Section 1.704-3(d)(2) of the Regulations, and (1) with respect to any other asset the
Book Value of which differs from its adjusted tax basiz for federal income tax purposes at the beginning of
such Fiseal Year, Depreciation shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to such begimning Bock Value
a3 the federal income tax depreciation, amortization, or other cost recovery deduction for such Fiscal Year
bears to such beginming adpusted tax basis; provided, that i the case of clanse (1) above, if the adjusted tax
basis for federal income tax purposes of an asset at the beginming of such Fizcal Year is zero, Depreciation
zhall be determined with reference to such beginning Beok Value using any method selected by the

Manzpers.
“Dissolution Event™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.1
“ERISA” means the Emploves Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as

“Exercize Period”™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.2.
“Fizcal Year™ shall be as set forth in Section 10.1.

“Governmental Authority™ means any federal, state, local or foreign government
or political subdivision thereof, or amy agency or instrumentslity of such government or political
subdivision, or any self-regulated organization or other non-governmental regulatory authority or quasi-
governmentzl authonh (to the extent that the rules, ragulatlons or orders of such organization or authonty
have the force of]an} or any arbitrator, court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction.

“Indemmified Party™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12.1.1.

“Indemmnitee™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12.1.2.

“Liquidating Agexnt™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.3.1.

“Managers” means (a) each Perzon identified as of the date hereof as a Manager
in Section §.2.1 and (b) each Person who is hereafter elected as a Manager in accordance with Section .22
Managers need not be Members of the Company or residents of the State of New Jersey but must be natural
individuals.

“Member” and “Members™ shall have the meaning zet forth in the Preamble.

“Membership Interest”™ or “Interest”™ shall mean, with respect to any Member, the

entire membership interest of such Member in the Company, including all of a Member's nghts and interests
in, and obligations to, the Company in its capacity as a Member, all as provided in the Certificate
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of Formation, this Agreement and the Act, which Membership Interest reflects the interest of the Member
in the Company.

“Wet Cash Flow™ for any period, (2) the gross revenues of the Company, without
duplication, from all sources for such period (including from sales and refinancing of the Property or any
portion thereof but excluding Capital Contributions), fess (B)(1) any amounts required to pay the costs and
expenses of the Company and its Subsidiaries incurred for such pEnod mncluding, without limitation, the
fees pavable pursuant to Section 6.2, (i) any debt service payments (including amortization) on any
indebtedness of the Company and its Suhs:d]m (1) any capital expendrtures of the Company and its
Subzidianes and (1v) any mcreases in the Cccmpam & reserves, as reasonably determined by the Members,
including reserves established for fiture capital expenditures or for fiture debt sen'mepa\mem (mcludmg
amortization) on any Cempany indebtedness, pls (c) any released or reduced Company reserves, as
reasonably determined by the Members.

“Met Profits” and “Met Loszes™ means for any period the taxable income or loss,
respectively, of the Company for such peried, in each case as determined for federal income tax purposes,
but computed with the fellowing adjustments:

(1) items of income, gain, loss and deduction (including gain or loss on the
dizposition of any Company asset and Depreciation) shall be computed based upon the Book Value of the
Company's assets rather than upon such assets’ adjusted bases for federal income tax purposes;

(i)  any tax-exempt income received by the Company shall be deemed for
these purposes only to be an item of gross income;

(iif)  any expenditure of the Company described in Section 705(2)(2)(B) of the
Code (or treated as described therem pursuant to Fegulations under Section 704(h) of the Code) shall be
treated az a deductible expensze;

(i)  there shall be taken inte account any separately stated items under Section
702(a) of the Code;

() if the Bock Value of any Company asset iz adjusted pursuant to clauses
(1) or (1v) of the definthion thereof, the amount of such adjustment shall be taken into account i the penod
of adjustment a3 gam or loss from the disposition or deemed disposition of such asset for purposes of
computing Net Profits and Net Losses; and

(vi)  items of income, gain loss, or deduction or credit allocated pursuant to
Section 3.4 shall not be taken imnto account.

“OFAC List” means the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
mamtained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, Department of the Treasury and/or any other similar
list maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control pursuant to any authonzing statute, executive order
of regulation.

“Offer Notice™ shall have the meaning zet forth in Sechion 73.1.

“Percentage Interest” means, with respect to each Member, the percentage
determined by dividing such Member's aggregate Capital Confributions by the agzregate Capital

51



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

Contributions of all Members. The Percentage Interest of each Member as of the date hereof is set forth on
Exhibit A hereto.

“Permitted Transfiers™ shall have the meaming =2t forth in Section 7.2.

“Person” means an individual, a parmership, a corporation, an association, a joint
stock company, a trust, a jomnt venture, a limited hahlity company, an unincorporated orgamzation or a
governmentsl entity or any department, agency or political subdivizion thereof.

“Prohibited Person™ means any Persen identified on the OFAC List or any other
Person with whom a ULS. Person mav not conduct business or fransactions by prolibition of Federal law
of Executive Order of the President of the United States of Amernica.

“Pegulations”™ means the income tax regulations promulgated under the Code.
“ROFO Closing Date™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.4.
“R.OFQ Defanlt” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.3.

“ROFQ Election™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.2.

“ROFQ Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.1.

“Subsidiary” means any corporafion, hnuted hahility company or other single
purpose entity, all or any of the ownership interests in which are owned direcfly or mdirectly by the
Company including, without limitation, Property Owner.

“Transfer™ means, with respect to a Membership Imterest, a sale, exchange,
transfer, conveyance, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, abandonment or other disposition
of all or any portion of such Membership Interest.

“Transferring Member™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.1.

“Unretumed Capital Contribution™ means, with respect to a Member holding Class
A Units, Class C Units, or Class D Units such Member's aggregate Capital Contributions with respect to
such Member's Class A Units, Class C Units, or Clazs D Units, less the aggregate amount of distributions
made to such Member with respect to such Member's Class A Units, Class C Units, or Class D Units pursnant
to Section 3.1(a) or 3.1(b), as applicable (includng distnbutions treated as made under Section 5.3.1 or
5.3.2 through the application of Section 3.4(c) or Article IN).

All other terms not defined in this Article T shall have the meanmg ziven to them mn the body of this
Agreement.

ARTICIET
ESTABLISHNENT OF THE COMPANTY

2.1, Intentionally omitted.

22, Company Name. The busmess of the Company shall be conducted under the name
of THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC; provided, however, that, subject to all
applicable laws, the business of the Company may be conducted under amy other name or names deemed
neceszary or advisable by the Manager, as long as such name does not include or incorporate all or any part

7
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of the name of any Member or their respective Affiliates without such Member's consent. In this regard,
the Manaper shzll file, or cause to be filed, all such fictitious name or smmilar filings as may be approprizte
from time fo time.

23. Purposes. The Members hereby apres that the Comparry is to be organized for the
benefit of each Member, for the following purposes:

231 to apply for licenzes to cultivate, manufacture, and'or dispense medical
and'or recreational cannabis in accordance with the applicable cannabis laws and regulations in the State
of New Jerzey (“the Cannabis Laws™) (the “Licenses™), and if awarded such Licenses, conduct operations
in accordance with the Cannabiz Laws;

232 todoany and all things which may be necessary, meidental, or convenient
to carry on the business of the Company as described herein and which are permitted under the Act, all on
the terms and conditions set forth heremn.

24, Prncipal Place of Business and Address. The principal place of business of the
Company shall be located at 1000 Lincoln Drive East, Second Floor, Marlton, NJ 02033, or at such other
location as the Manager may from time to time designate. The Manager shall provide written notice of the
Company's principal place of business to the Members at least five (3) days prier to a change in the
Company's principal place of business. The Company may mantzin offices and other facilities from time
to time at such cther locations within the continentsl United States as may be deemed necessary or advizable
by the Manager. The Manager shall provide notice to the Members of any such other office or facility
prompﬂ}' after the establishment thereof

2.5, Repistered Office; Registered Agent.

251 The repistered office of the Company shall be the office of the inthal
regiztered agent named n the Certificate of Formation or such other office (which need not be a place of
businesz of the Company) as the Managers may designate from time fo time in the manner provided by the
BULLCA and Applicable Law.

252 The remstered agent for service of process on the Company in the State of
New Jersey shall be the initial registered apent named in the Certificate of Formation or such cther Person
of Persons as the Managers may designate from time to time i the manner provided by the BULLCA and
Applicable Law.

26, Temn The exiztence of the Company commenced as of the date of the filing of the
Certificate of Formation and shall contimue until terminated or dissolved under the provizions of this
Agresment.

27 Admission of Members. The Members are the only Members of the Company as
of the date hereof. Except as expressly permitted by ﬂnsAEIeement,uoomﬂrPerwnshallbe admitted as
amember of the Company except pursuant to this Agreement and ne other Person has the right to take part
in the owmership or management of the Compary.

28 Limitation on Lishility. Except as otherwise expresshy provided in the Act, the
debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company, whether ansing in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be
solely the debts, cbligations and lishilities of the Company, and no Member shall be chligated personally
for amy such debt, obligation or lishility of the Company, solely by reazon of being a Member of the
Company.
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ARTICLE I
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

3.1.  Initial Capital Contributions. On the date hereof, each Member has contributed to
the Company the amount set forth on the books and records of the Company (the “Inrtial Capital
Contribution™).

Lad

2. Mandatory Capital Contributions.
32.1. No mandatory Capital Contnbutions shall be required of any Member.

33. No Inferest Except as agreed between the Members and the Company or as
expressly set forth in this Agreement, no interest will be paid by the Company (a) on amy Capital
Contribution made by such Member, (b) on the balance of any Capltal Account of such Member or (€) on
any advance to the Company from such Member.

34, PRetum of Capital No Member shall have the nght to demand or to receive the
return of all or amy part of its contnbutions to the capital of the Company. In addihon, no Member has the
right to demand or to recerve property other than cash in return for itz contributions to the capital of the
Company and, except as provided in thiz Agreement, no Member shall have any pricrity over any other
Member as to the retum of the Capital Contnbutions of such Member or the balance i such Member's
Capital Account.

3.5, NoPerzonal Liability. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agresment
no Member shall be personally liable for the retumn of anv Capital Confibubions of, or loans made by, the
Members or any portion thereof and the return of Capital Contributions and repayment of such loans I:n the
Members shall be made solely from the Company’s assats. No Member shall be personally lisble for the
payment or performance of the debts and other obligations of the Company, except otherwise described
heremn.

ARTICLEIV
CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP AND CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

4.1,  Capital Accounts. A capital account (“Capital Account™) shall be maintained for
each Member in accordance with Section 704(k) of the Code and Fegulations Sections 1.704-1(k) and
1.704-2. Each Member's Capital Account shall be as set forth in the Company's books and records.

41, Adjustments. The Capital Account of each Member zhall be mcreased by (1) the
amount of any cash contributed by such Member to the capital of the Company, (ii) the Book Value of any
property contributed by such Member to the capital of the Company (net of habilities that the Company 15
considered to assume, or take property subject to, unde.r Sechun 732 of the Code), (i) such Member's share
of Met Profits (as dﬂtermmﬂdm accordance with Section 5.1) and (iv) ary income and gain allocated to such
Member pursuant to Section 5.4, The Capital A{:u:crunt “of each Member shall be decreased by (W) the
amount of all cash distributions to such Member, () the Book Value of any property distributed to such
Member by the Company (net of lizhilities that the Member is considered to zssume, or take property
subjesct to, “under Section 732 of the Code), (v) such Member's share of Net Losses (az determined in
accordance with Section 5.1), and (z) any deductions znd losses allocated to such Member pursuant to
Section 5.4.
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43,  Intentionally Omitted

44 Transfers If any Membership Interest 15 transferred in accordance with the terms
of this Apreement, the transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the transferor to the extent it relates
to the transferred Membership Interest.

435 Capital Account Balance. Except as otherwise provided in thiz Agreement
whenever it is neceszary to determine the Capital Account balance of any Member, the Capital Account
balance of such Member hall be determined after giving effect to all allocations pursuant to Article V and
all contributions and distributions made prier to the time a3 of which such determination is to be made.

46. Fouwr Classes of Membership Interest The Company shall have four classes of
Membership Interests, Clasz A Membership Interests, Class B Membership Interests, Clazss C Membership
Imterests, and Class D Membership Interests.

461 Class A Umts. There shall be 983,750 Class A Units. The holders of Class
A Unite are entitled to cne vote at all meetings of Members (or written consents in lien of meetings) for
each Class A Unit held.

462 Class B Units. There shall be 7,500 Class B Units. The holders of Class B
Units are not entitled to voting rights.

463 Class C Units. There shall be 8,730 Clasz C Units, each reprezenfinz a
Capital Contribution of Twenty Dellars (520.00) for 2 total of $175,000.00. The holders of Class C Units are
entitled to one vote at all meetmgs of Members {or written consents in lien of meetings) for each Class C
Unit held.

464 Class D Units. There shall be 6,175,000 Class D Units, each representing a
Capital Contribution of Twenty Cents (5020) for a total of $1,233,000.00. Capital Contributions shall be
pavable in accordance with the written subseription agreement between the Company and the Class D
Members. The holders of Class D Units are not entitled to voting rights.

46.5. Unless otherwise described herein, Class A Units shall have the rights,
restrictions and preferences of the Class A Units set forth herein. Unless otherwize described herein, Class
B Units shall have all the rights, restrictions and preferences of the Class B Units set forth herein. Unless
otherwize described herein, Class C Units shall have zll the nghts, restrictions and preferences of the Class
C Units zet forth herein. Unless otherwize described herein, Clasz D Unitz shall have all the nghts,
restrictions and preferences of the Class D Units set forth herein.

47, Uncertificated Membership Units. The Membership Units of the Company shall
be uncertificated and shall be recorded in the books and records of the Company as they may be issued
from time to time or as recorded by a stock registrar or transfer apent selected by the Manager.

ARTICLE WV
ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBEUTIONS
5.1, Allocafions of Net Profit and Net Loss. Except as otherwise mav be determined
by the Managers to comply with the requirements of Section 704(b) of the Code, Net Profit and Net Loss

for any Fiscal Year of the Company shall be allocated among the Members in proportion to their respective
Percentage Interests.

5.2,  Distnbuticns Restricted by the Act Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary
10
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contamed in thiz Agreement, the Compeny shall not make any payment, distnbution or redemphion to any
Member on account of 1ts Membership Interest if such pavmf:nt distribution or redemption would vielate
the Act or any other applicable law.

5.3. Distnbuticns Subject to Section 5.4 and except a3 otherwize provided in Article
¥ of this Apreement with respect to distnbutions upon hqudation of the Company, distibutions shall be
made by the ¢ Company in the amounts and at the times determined by the Managers (but no less frequently
than anmually) to all Members in the following order and priority:

331, First, to each member holding Class C Units in proportion to their
respective Unretumed Capital Contributions, untl the Unretumed Capital Contribution of each such
Niember has been reduced to zero;

332 Second, to each Member holding Class D Units m proportion to their
respective Unretumed Capital Contributions, wntl] the Unretumed Capital Contribution of each such
hMember has been reduced to zero; and

333, Thereafter, Forty Seven and One Half Percent (47.3%) to the members
holdmg Class A Units in proportion to ther ownership of Class A Umts,
Tmmh Percent (20%) to the members holding Clazz B Units in proportion
to their ownership of Class B Units, Twenty Percent (20%) to the members
holdmg Class C Units in proportion to their s ownership of Class C Units, and
the remaming Twelve and One Half Percent (12.5%) to the members holding
Clas: D Units in proportion to their ownership of Class D Units.

54 Mandatory Tax Distnbutions.

(a) Within 90 days, or as soon thereafter as practicable, after the end of each
taxable vear of the Company (or, in the Managers” dizeretion, such earlier date a3 individual taxpayers are
required to make estimated tax payments), the Company shall calculate and distribute to each Member such
Member's Mandatory Tax Distnbution Amount; provided, however, that the distribution of any Mandatory
Tax Distribution Amount shall be deferred, on a pro rata basiz bazed on each Member's Mandatory Tax
Distnbution Amount, m the Managers' discretion if the Company does not have sufficient cash on hand o
fund such Mandatory Tax Distnibuhon Amount or the payment of any Mandatory Tax Dhstribution Amount
would cause a default under the terms of anv finded indebtedness of the Company. The deferral shall
continue until such time as the Managers determine that sufficient cash to fimd the Mandatory Tax
Distnbution Amount 15 available or the payment of such Mandatory Tax Distnbution Amount would not
cause a default under the terms of any finded indebtedness. The “Mandatory Tax Distribution Amennt”
for each Member for each taxable vear means an amount equal to the excess of (i) the product of (A) the
net tazable income of the Company allocated to (or reasonably estimated to be allocable to) such Member
for the taxable year atinbutable to the items allocated to such Member under Section 4 and Appendix A to
thiz Apreement multiplied by (B) the sum of the maximum federal individual income tax rate and the
maximum combined state and local individual income tax rate to which any Member (or, if any Member is
a pass-through entity for federal income tax purposes, any owner of such pass-through entlhj 15 subject
(less the effect of the deduction of state and local iInrome taxes on the federal refurn, assuming no limitation
of such deduction under Section 68 of the Code), taking into account for this purpose the character of items
allocated to such Member a3 ordinary income or capital gain, over (ii) the sum of the aggregate Mandatory
Tax Distnbufion Amounts pcrenoush distnbuted to such Member with respect to such taxable vear and the
apggregate distributions previously made to such Member pursuant to Section 5.1 with rapect to such
taxable year.

(k) Solely for purposzes of this Section 3.4, if a Member is allocated a net loss
for federal income tax purposes for any taxable vear or period of the Company (caleulated under the

11
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principles described in clanze (i) of Section 3.4(a)) beginning after the date of this Agreement, such net loss
zhall be offset apainst, and shall reduce the net income allocated (or reasonably estimated to be allocable,
as provided under Section 3. 4(a)) to such Member in subsequent taxable vears of the Company (until such
net loss is exhansted) for purposes of caleulating the Mandatory Taz Distribution Amount for such Member
for such subsequent fizcal quarters.

(©) Any distributions under this Section 3.4 shall offzet the next distribution(s)
due to the Member under Section 3.1 on a dollar-for-dollar basis and shall be deemed to have been made
under the applicable provision(s) thereof. It is the intent of the Members that distributions made pursuant
to thiz Section 5.4 are not intended to change the aggregate distribution amounts that each Member 1z
entitled to receive pursuant to Section 5.3, Accordingly, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herem, the Managers and Members shall apply distnbutions made pursnant to this Section 5.4 m such
manmer as is necessary to produce such result.

5.5 Treatment of Texes Withheld All amounts withheld or paid by the Company pursuant
to the Code or any provision of any state, local or foreipn tax law with respect to any payment, distribution
or allocation to a Member, oF any sumhmnmuﬂthatlspmd‘m the Company solely I:n reasen of the helding
of Units by any Member, shall be treated as an advance from the Company to the Member with respect to
whom such tax is required to be withheld The Company shall have the nght to apply amy amounts
otherwise distributable to a Member, or otherwise payvable by the Company to such Member under any other
provizion of this Apreement, to pay the outstanding balance of such Member's advances described in the
immediately preceding sentence. The obligation of a Member to pay the outstanding balance of such
Member's advances under this Section 5.5 shall contimue after such Member transfers its Units in the
Company and after a withdrawal by such Member. Each Member agrees to furnish the Company with any
information, representations or forms as shall reasonably be requested by the Company to assist it in
deternining the extent of, or in fulfilling, any withholding obligahions it may have.

5.6.  Partnership Representative.

341, Spencer Saint-Cyr iz hereby designated the “partnership representative”™

(22 such term 13 defined in Section 6223(z) of the Code) of the Company for any tax period subject to the
provisions of Section 6223 of the Code, as amended by the Bipartizan Budget Act nf"CIlS (the “BBA™), as
well as for purposes of comparable provisions of any state, local, or non-1.8. tax law, and in such capacity
1z referred to as the Partnership Representative Spencgr Samt-Cyr shall be entitled to select any
indivicual() who mests the applicable requirements to act on behalf of the Partmership Representative, and
the Company shall appomt such individual as the designated individual through whom the Tax
Bepresentative acts, as set forth m Regulations Section 301.6223-1(b)(3)(11) (or comparable provisions of
any tax law) (anv such mdiidual as “Designated Individual™). Unless the context otherwise requires,
references herein to the Partnership Representative shall inchude amy such Designated Individual. Spencer
Saint-Cyr shall promptly notify the Members upon the receipt of written motice of final partmership
3d]ustm€mt and,sub]ecttoSechoni]’ shall make such elections as needed or take other actions as it

determines in its scle discretion to be in the best interests of the Company, current Members and former
Members to comply with the parmership audit procedures enacted under the EBA. The Members agree to
cooperate m good faith, meluding by timely providing information, makimg elections and filing amended
returns, each as reascnably requ.ested by the Partnership Representative. To the extent permitted by law,
each Member agrees that such Member will not, unless dizclosed in writing to Spencer Saint-Cyr, (1) treat
any Company item of meome, gain, deduction or loss inconmstently on such Member's income tax retum
with the treatment of the item on the Company's tax and'or mformation returns or (1) independently act
with respect to tax auditz or tax litipation affecting the Company. The Partnership Representative (i) shall
keep the Members reasonably informed of all material administrative and judicial procesdings relating to
the Company and (11) shall consult with all Members m good farth before entering into any tax settlement
agreement or any compromise i any tax proceeding or similar agreements or arrangements affecting the
Company.

12
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362, The Partnership Representative will promptly give notice to the Members
of the contents of any material communication, oral or written, from the Intemal Revenue Service or any
state or lecsl taxing authority. The Parinership Representative will also promptly give notice to the
Members of the commencement of any material administrative or judicial proceedings involving the tax
treatment of any items of Company income, loss, deduction or credit.

563, The Companv shall indemmify and reimburse the Partnership
Representative for all reasonable expenses, including legal and accounting fees, claims, lisbilities, losses
and damages incurred in comnection with any admimstrative or judicial prumeing with respect to ‘the tax
liahility of the Members or in connection with any audit of the Company's tax retuns, except to the extent
such expenses, claims, Liakilities, loszes and damages are attributable to the gross negligence or wallful
mizconduct of the Partnership R.epresentam'e

5.7.  Tax Elections. All elechons and other tax decizsions by the Company and its
Subsidianies pertaming to any federal, state or lecal income tax return, income tax or other tax matter,
including extending the statute uf]umtalmn and whether to litigate or settle any tax controversy, shall be
made by the Managers; provided, however, that the Members intend thet the Company shall be treated as
a partnership for federal and, where permissible, state and local, income tax purposes, and neither any
Members ner the Company shall tzke amy action inconsistent with such intent.

5.8 Tax Retums The Managers shall canze the Company to prepare or cause to be
prepared and shall file on or before the due date (or any extension thereof) any Federal, state or local tax
returns required to be filed by the Company. The Company shall furnish each Member within 120 days of
the end of each fiscal vear or as soon as practicable thereafter (and after all necessary information is
reazonably available to the Company), with a Scheduole K-1 and any required state income tax return.

59.  Section 754 Election. In the event a distnbution of Company aszets cccurs which
satizfies the pmisions of Section 734 of the Code or in the event a transfer of an Interest ocenrs which
satisfies the provisions of Section 743 of the Code, upon the request of any of the Members, the Comparny
shall elect, pursuant to Section 734 of the Code, to adjust the bazis of the Cﬂmpam 5 property to the extent
allowed by such Section 734 or 743 and shall cause such adjustments to be made and mamntained. Each
Member shall provide the Company with such information and such other cooperation as may be necessary
to receive from such Member in order for such election to be made and effected.

5.10.  Tax Allocations, Code Section 70d(c). Except as required by Section 704(¢) of the
Code or provided in this Section 3.8, for federal, staleaﬂdlocalmpmtaxpm]:osm only, Company
ncome, gain, loss, deduction or expense (or any rtemthzmuﬂ with respect to the Compam for each taxable
year shall be allocated to and among the Members in the same manner as “book’ income iz allocated
pursuznt to this Article V. If the Book Value of any Company asset is adjusted under clauze (B) of the
defimtion of Bock Value, subsequent allocations of income, gain, loss and deduchion with respect to that
asset will take account of anv variation between the adjusted basis of the asset for federal meome tax
purpozes and itz Bock Value in the same manner as under Code Section 704(c).

ARTICLE VI
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS

6.1.  NManagement

6.1.1. The business, affairs and assets of the Company shall be managed,
arranged and canzed to be cocrdinated by Managers, who shall have, except az provided in Section 6.3 of
this Agreement, full, exclusive and complete discretion with respect thereto. Subject to and in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement. the Managers shall have zll necessary and appropnate powers to
carry out the purposes of the Company set forth in Section 2.3, Except as otherwize provided in this
Agreement, the Managers shall have the power and authonty acting in good faith to make and implement
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all decizsions with respect to all matters which the Company has the autherity to perform, including, without
limitation, the power to:

(i) conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of the
r, and to make such mles and repulations therefor consistent with the Act, the Certificate
of Formation and this Agreement;

(i) open, maintain and close bank accounts and draw checks or other
crders fior the payment of monies;

(iii)  enter into any contract or endorsement in the name or for the
account of the Company;

(iv)  employ, retain, or otherwize secure or enter imto contracts,
agreements and other undertakings with persons in connection with the management and operation
of the Company’s business, meluding, without imitabion, attorneys and accountants;

) bring or defend, pay, collect, compromize, arbitrate, resort to legal
action, or otherwise adjust claims or demands of or against the Compary;

(vi)  cause the Company to incur indebtedness;

(vit)  deposit, withdraw, invest, pay, retamn and distribute the Company's
fimds in a manner consistent with the provizions of thiz Agreement; and

(wiit) cause the Company to camry such indemnification insurance as the
Managers deems mnecessary to protect them and amy other individual or entity entifled to
indemnification by the Company.

6.12. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Member other than
Managers shall participate in the management or confrol of the Company or have any right to zpprove, vote
on or otherwize conzent to any matter relating to the business, affawrs or assets of the Compﬁm Unlezs
antherized in writing to dnsnln this Agresment or by aManage:r no Member, attorney-in-fact, emplovee
or other agent of the Company shall have any power or authority to bind the Compam In any way, to pledge
itz credit or to render it Liable for any purpose.

6.1.3.  The Managers shall not be compensated for their services az Managers,
but the Company shall rermburse the Managers for all ordinary, necessary, and direct expenses incurred by
the Managers in performance of their duties as Managers. All reimbursements for expenses shall be
reazonable in amount Nething contained in thiz Section 6.1.3 shall be construed to preclude any Manager
from serving the Company in any other capacity and receiving reascnzble compensation for such services.

6.14. This Agreement does not, and is not intended to, confer upon any Manager
any rights with respect to continued employvment by the Compary, and nothing herein should be constroed
to have created any emplovment agreement with anv Manager.

6.1.5. Except az otherwize provided in the RULLCA, by Applicable Law or
expressly in thiz Agreement, no Manager will be oblipated perzonally for any debt, obligations, or liability
of the Company, whether ansing in contract, tort or otherwise, solely by reason of being a Manager.

6.21.  Number, Election znd Term of Managers.

621, The number of Manapers shall be fixed from time to time by the
affirmative vote of Members holding a majorty of the Class A and Class C Membership Interests, but the
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number of Managers shall not be less than cne. The Company shall initially have cne Manager, who shall
be Spencer Samt-Cyr.

622 Managers shall be appointed from time-to-time by the affirmative vote of
Members holding 2 majority of the Class A and Class C Membership Interests. Each Manager, including
each of the nthal Manapers named m this Agreement shall serve for a term ending at the next meeting of the
Members called for the purpose of electing Managers, or until the Manager's earlier, death, resignation or
Temoval.

613 The Manapers shall mamntain a schedule of all Manapers with ther
respective mailing addresses (the “Managers Schedule™) and shall update the Managers Schedule upon the
removal or replacement of any Manager in accordance with this Section 6.2 or Section 6.3. A Copy of the
Managers Schedule as of the execution of this Azreement iz attached herete as Exhibit B.

6.3. PFemoval Pesipnation and Vacancies.

6.3.1. Members helding a majonty of the Class A and Class C Membership
Imterest may remove all or any lesser number of Managers, with or without cause.

632, AManager may resign at any time by delivering his written resignation to
the Company. Any such resignation shall be effective upon receipt thereof unless it iz specified to be
effective at some other time or upon the ccowrrence of zome other event. The acceptance of a resignation
by the other Managers shall net be neceszary to make it effective.

6.3.3. The rezignation or removal of 2 Manager who i3 also a Member zhall not
constitute a withdrawal or expulsion of the Manager as a Member of the Company or otherwize affect the
Manager's nghts 2z a Member. If a Manager resigns or 1z removed, Members holding a majonity of the
Clazs A and Class C Membership Interest shall appoint the successor Manager.

64.  Action by Manapers.

6.4.1. If there iz more than one Manager zerving, all decizions requining action
of the Managers or relating to the business or affairs of the Company shall be decided by the affirmative
vote or consent of a majority of the LManagers.

642 On any matter that iz fo be voted on by Managers, a Manager may vote n
perzon or by proxy, and such proxy may be granted in writing, by means of Electronic Transmizsion or as
otherwize permitted by Applicable Law. Every proxy shall be revocable in the diseretion of the Manager
executing it unless otherwise provided in such proxy; provided, that such right to revecation shall not
invelidate or otheranze affect actions taken under such proxy; pricr to such revocation.

643 Any action of the Manapers may betakentiithmﬂameeﬁugifeﬂhﬂ(i)a
wnitten consent of 2 majonty of the Manal::m shall approve such action; provided, that prior written notice
of such action 1z provided to all Ma.uaaers at least one (1) Business Day before such action iz taken, or (1)
a Written consent constituting all of the Manazers shall approve such action. Such consent shall have the
same force and effect as a vote at a meeting and may be stated a3 such in any document or instrument filed
with the Secretary of State of New Jersey.

6.5.  Action: Reguinng Approval of Clasz A and Class C Members. Without the
approval of a majonty of the Class A and Class C Membership Interests, the Company shall not, and

6.6.  zhall not enter info any commitment to:

661, Amend, modify or waive the Certificate of Formation or thiz Agreement;
15
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provided that the Mansgers may, without the consent of the Members, amend the Members Schedule
following amy new issuance, redemphon_ repurchase or Transfer of Membership Interests in accordance
with thiz Agreement;

6.62. Allocate, izsue and award Clazs B Units to current or additional hMembers
of the Company as meentive units for goods and services provided to the Company;

663 Incur any indebtedness, pledge or grant liens on any assets or guaranty,
assume, endorse or otherwise become responsible for the obligations of any other Person in excess of two
hmdredﬂh thousand dollars ($250,000.00) in a single transaction or senes of related transactions, or in
excess of one millicn dollars ($1,000,000.00) in the aggregate at &ny time cutstanding;

664, Make any loan, advance, or capital contribution in any Perzon in excess of
fifty thousand dollar ($30,000.00;

6.6.5. Enter into, amend (in any material respect), waive or temminate any Felated
Party Agresment other than the enfry into a Related Party Agreement that iz on an arm's length basis and
on terms no less favorable fo the Compary than those that could be obtained from an naffiliated third

party;

666 Enter into or effect any transaction or series of related transactions
mvolving the purchase, lease, heense, exchange or other acquisrion (ncluding by merger, consohidation,
acquisition of stock or acqusition of assets) by the Company of any assets, other than sales of mventory in
the crdinary course of business consistent with past practice;

6.6.7. Establizh a Subsidiary or enter into any joint venture or similar business
arrangement;

668 Settle any lawsumit, action, dizpute, or other proceeding or otherwize
azsume any liability with a value in excess of fifty thousand doellars (330,000.00) or agree to the provision
of any equitsble relief by the Company;

669 Initiate or consummate an imitial public offering or make a public offering
and sale of the Membership Interests or any other securities;

6.6.10. Make any mvestments in any other Person in excess of fifty thousand
dollars ($50,000.00); or

6.6.11. Merge, conschdate, dissolve, wind-up or hqudate the Company or imtiate
2 bankmuptey proceeding involving the Company.

6.7.  Legal Title to Company Property. Legal itle to property of the Company, shall be
held m the name of the Company.

6.8.  Other Activities of Members. Neither this Agreement nor any activity undertaken
on behalf of the Company shall prevent any of the Members or any of the Affiliates of the Members, or any
Person owning amy direct or indirect interest in a Member, individually or jointly with others, from engaging
in amy other activities or businesses or from making investments, prmidsdthat such activities, businesses or
investments do not directly compete with the business of the Company or create a conflict of interest.
Neither the Members nor their Affiliates shall have any obligation to account to the Company or to one
another for any profits or other benefits derived from other activities, businesses, or investments. The
Members and thetrrespe::tu.‘e Affiliates shall not be obligated to present to the Compam or each other any
particular investment opportunity, regardless of whether such opporimity is of such character that the
Company or any of them could take it if such opportunity were presented to the Company or any of them,
and the Iembers or their Affiliates shall have the right to take for their own accounts, or to recommend to
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others, any such investment epportunity.

69.  Officers. The Managers may appoint indrniduals as officers of the Company (the
“Officers™) as they deem neceszary or desirable to carry on the business of the Comparry and the Managers
may delegate to such Officers such power and authority as the Managers desm advisable. No Officer need
be a Member of the Company. Any individual may hold two or more offices of the Company. Each Officer
shall hold office until his successor is designated by the Managers or until his earlier death, resignation or
removal Any Officer may resign at any time on written notice to the Manapers. Any Ofﬁ{:ermm be
removed by the Managers with or without cause at any time. A vacancy in any office occurring because of
death, remgnatmu., removal or otherwise, may, butnaadnoi, beﬁ.l]edbﬁ ﬂmMa.uaE:e:rs

6.10.  Other Activities of Managers: Business Opportunities. Managers shall devote zo
much time and attention to the business of the Company as they deem appropriate in their sole discretion.
Nothing contained i thiz Agreement shall prevent any L'Ianagm'frcmengagmg i any other achivities or
busineszes, regardless of whether those activities or businesses are similar to the Compam None of the
Managers sha]l be obligated to account to the Company or to the Members for any profits or income earned
of denived from other such activities or businesses. None of the Managers shall be obligated to inform the
Company or the Memberz of the busmess opportunity of any type or descniption.

ARTICLE VII
TRANSFER. OF MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS

7.1, Bestrictions on Transfers of Membership Inferests. No Member shall Transfer all
or any portion of ts Membership Inferest (nor shall such Member suffer to exst any such Transfer) unless
such Transfer 1z (1) approved by a majority of the Manapers, or permutted under this Article VII and until
all requirements and conditions stated in thiz Article VII, which shall be read and construed az a whole,
have been satizfied in full or have been waived by the non-transferring Members. To the fullest extent
permutted under applicable law, any Transfer in violation of this Article VII shall be invahid, meffective and
not enforceable for any purpese, shall be void ab initio as to the Transfer of a Membership Interest that
would canse such viclation, and the intended transferee shall acquire no rights in such Membership Interest.
No autherization, consent or waiver applicable to one Transfer shall apply or be deemed to apply to any
other Transfer or requested Transfer.

72, Permitted Transfers. Notwithstanding Section 7.1, but subject to the applicable
provisions of terms of any lean to the Company, and Section 7.3, a Member may Transfer, directly or
ndirectly, all or a portion of such Member's Inferest, without the consent of the Compnm o any other
Member as follows (“Permitted Transfers™):

(i)  Intentionally Omitted:

(i) Transfers of direct or indirect interests held by an individual ina
Member upon the death of such individual;

(i)  With respect to individuals, Transfers of indirect interests in the
Company to an entity or trust the sole owners or beneficiaries of which are such transferring

mdindual’s spouse, 13zue, parent, sibling or 2 sibling's 1ssue and so long as the transfenme;
individual continues to Control such transfernng Member;

(1v)  Transfers of a Member's Interest to such Member's wholly owned
subsidiary or an Affiliate with 100% commen ownership with such Member; or

) Transfers by operation of law.
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13.  Fight of First Offer.

13.1. Ifa Member other than a Manager (2 “Transferring Member™) desires to
Transfer all of its Membership Interest to any Perzon other than a Permitted Transferee, then the
Transferring Member shall first give notice thereof to the Managers (an “Offer Notice™), which Offer Notice
shall set forth the purchase price the Transferrme Member would be willing to accept for s Membership
Interest (the “EOFQ Price™).

132 The Managers shall have a peried of thirty (30) days following their
receipt of an Offer Notice (the “Exercize Penod™) m which they shall have the night to elect to purchase all
of Transfernng Member's Interests for the ROFO Price, by giving written nehice of such election (the
“ROFQ Election™).

133, Ifthe Managers do not make a timely ROFO Election or waive their rights
under this Section 7.3, the Managers zhall be deemed to have elected not to purchase the Transferring
Member's Interests and Transferring Member shall be free to proceed to initiate and consummate a Transfer
of itz entire Membership Interest at a price equal to or greater than the ROFO Price, and on other terms and
conditions which are the same or not materially more favorable to the proposed purchaser than those offered
to the Managers. If Transferring Member fails to close such a Transfer within sixty (60) days after the
expiration of the Exercise Period or desires to enter into a Transfer af a price less than the ROFQ Price or
on terms more favorable to the proposed purchaser than those offered to the Managers, then any attempt to
consummate a Transfer of such Memberzhip Interest thereafter shall again be subject to the provizions of
thiz Section 7.3.

134 If a Manager has timely and properly delivered a ROFO Election,
Transferring Member and the Manager shall consummate the ROFO Sale within sixty (60) davs after the
date of the ROFOQ Election (the “ROFO Closing Date™. On the ROFO Clozsing Date, the Man.agm’ shall
pav the balance of the ROFO Price to Transferrmg Member (net of any required tax mthhnldmgs) At the
clozing of an ROFO Sale, Transfernng Member and the Manager shall enter into such agreements as may
reasonably be requested by either of them containing terms and conditions relating to the sale of the
Memhership Interests that are customary for transactions of this type.

13.5 If a Manager hes timely and properly delivered a ROFO Election, but
thereafter the sale contemplated thereby fails to close within the sixty (60) day peried due solely to the
defenlt of the Manager, and such default is not caused, in whole or in part, by the actions o inactions of the
Transferring Member (a2 “ROFO Defzult™) and Transferring Member i3 ready, willmg and able to
consummate such Transfer, then the Manager shall be deemed to have waived its right to purchase the
Transferring Member's Membership Interest and Transferring Member shall have the right to cauze a
Transfer of its MMembership Interests to any Person without compliance with thiz Section 7.3, within the 60
day peried following such ROFOQ Default.

736, If Transfermng Member defaults in its obligation to complete the ROFO
Sale by the ROFO Closing Date, and such default is not caused, in whele or in part, by the actions or
inacticns of a Manager, then the Manager shall have the right fo either (1) terminate the transaction and the
Manager shall receive from Manager an amount equal to its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred
in cbtaining such amount, or (i) bring an action for specific performance of Transferring Member's
obligation to complete the ROFO Sale (Transfemng Member expressly agreemg that the remedy at law for
breach of the obligations of the Transferning Member zet forth in thiz Section 7.3 iz inadequate in view of
(A) the complexities and uncertainties in measuring the actual damage to be sustained by a Mansger on
account of the default of Transferring Member; and (B) the uniqueness of the Members' m]ah{msl’n]:s]
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74, Additional Restrictions. Notwithstanding the forepoing, any Transfer by a
Member shall not be permitted, and if purported to be effected, shall be null and voud ab initio 1t

(1) it would viclate any financing documents to which the Company
or a Subsidiary 15 bound;

(i) it would result in the Company or any Member having to register
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, or any other federal, state or local securities laws;

(i) it would viclate any applicable federal, state or local laws,
mcluding the Secunties Act of 1933, 25 amended, and any other securtties laws;

(iv)  the transferee iz a Prohibited Person;

) as a result of such Transfer the aggregate value of Membership
Interests held by “benefit plan investors™ (within the meaning of Section 3(42) of ERISA), iz
“significant” (as such terms are defined in U.S. Department of Labar Regulstion 20 C.F.R. 2510.3-
1018200 with the result that the assets of the Company would be deemed to be “plan assets™ for
purposes of ERISA;

(vi)  in the opmion of counsel to the Company, there 15 matenial nsk
that such Transfer would cause the Company to be treated as a “publicly traded parinership”™ within
the meaning of Code Section 7704 and the regulations promulpated thereunder; or

(vit) such Transfer would cause any of the assets of the Company,
Property Owner or any Subsidiary to constitute “plan aszets”™ within the meaning of the plan asset
rules of ERISA at 20 CFR. 2510.3-101, as medified by Section 3(42) of ERISA.

73, Substitute Members. No assipnee of all or part of a Member's Interest shall become a
substitute BJember in place of the assignor Member unlesz and until: (2) The Transfer complies with the
provisions of this Arficle VII;

L)) The assignee has executed an mstrument accepting and adopting the terms and
provisions of this Agreement 2z a Member, and agrees in writing that the assigned rights remain subject to
all of the terms and conditions of thiz Apreement and may not be further Transfemred except in compliance
with thiz Agreement; znd

() The assignor or aszignee has paid all reascnable expenzes of the Company in
connection with the admizsion of the assignee as a substitute Member.

Upen satisfaction of all of the foregoing conditions with respect to a parficular assignee,
the Company shall cause this Agreement to be duly amended to reflect the admission of the assignee as a
substitute Member.

76,  Effect of Admission as a Substitute Member. Unless and untl admitted as a substrtute
Member pursuant to Section 7.3, a permitted assignee of all or & part of a Member's Interest shall not be
entitled to exercize any of the nghts or powers of a Member in the Company (all of which shall remain with
the assignor Member), including, without limitation, the right to vote, grant approvals or give consents with
Tespect to such Inferest, the nght to require any information or accounting of the Company’'s business or the
right to inspect the Company’s books and records. Such permitted asmignee shall only be entfitled to
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receive, to the extent of the Interest transferred to such permitted assipnee, the distributions to which the
assignor would be enfitled A pemutted assipnes who has become a substifute hMember has, to the extent
of the Interest transferred to such permitted assignee, all the rights and powers of the Person for whom he
iz substituted as the Member and iz subject to the restrictions and liabilities of a Member under this
Agreement and the Act, m which case the azsiznee shall have only such economic, non-voting nights of an
assignee under the Act as are consistent with the other terms and provisions of this Agreement. Upon
admizsion of a permitted assignee as a substitute Member, the assignor of the Interest so acquired by the
Substitute Member shall cease to be 2 Member of the Company to the extent of such Membership Interest.
A Person zhall not cease to be a Member upon assignment of all of such Member's Interest unless and unhl
the assignee(s) becomes a substitute Member.

11, Intentionally Omuitted.

7.8, Withdrawal, Retirement or Resipnation of a Member. No Member shall have the right or
power, and no Member shall attempt, to withdraw, resign or retire from the Compary except as specifically
set forth m this Apreement. Any ar,tcrpurportedact of a Member in violation of this Section 7.8 shall be
null znd void and of no effect.

7.9,  Withhelding Compliance. As a condition to any Transfer, a hManager may require that the
transferor and/or transferee provide evidence and/or certification reazonably acceptable to the Manager
establizhing that the parties have complied wath all withholding obligations under the Code or other
applicable tax law (or have estzblished exemption from such withhelding obligations). If the Company is
obligated to pay any taxes (ncluding penalhes, interest, any addition to tax, and withholdings or other
amounts in the nature of a tax) to amy governmental entity that are specifically attnibutable to a hMember or
such Member's assignor or that are a result of any transfer of an interest in the Company, incleding, without
limitation, on account of Sections 364 or 1446 of the Code, then (1) such persons shall mdemmify the
Company or applicable Subsidiary in fll for the entire amount paid or pavable; and (1) the Managers may
offset fiture distributions to such persons to which such persons are otherwize entitled under this Agresment
against such persons’ obligation to indemnify the Parmership under Articls X1

79  Drag-along Rights.

791 If cne or more Members (together with their respective Permitted Transferees)
holding no less than seventy-five percent (73%) of the then outstandng Clasz A Clas:z B, and Class C
Membershup Interests (such Member or hMembers, the “Dragging Member™), proposes to Transfer, in cne
transaction or a series of related transactions, all of the Membership Interestz owned by the Dragging
Member (2 “Drag-aleng Sale”™), the Dragging Member shall have the right after delivering the Drag-along
Notice n accordance with Section 7.9.3 and subject to compliance with Section 7.9.4, to require that each
other Member (each, a “Drag-along Member™) participate in such zale in the manner set forth in Section
192

792  Subject to compliance with Section 7.9.4, each Drag-along Member zhall zell in
the Drag-aleng Sale all of the Memberzhip Interests held by such Drag-along Member.

793 The Dragging Member shall exercise its rights pursuant to this Section 7.9 by
delivening a written notice (the “Drag-along Notice™ to the Company and each Drag-along Member no
more than ten (10) Business Days after the execution and delivery by all of the parties thereto of the
definitive azreement entered into with respect to the Drag-along Salgand,man} event, no later than twenty

20

65



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

(207 Business Days prior to the closing date of such Drag-along Sale. The Drag-along MNofice shall make
reference to the Dragging Members' nghts and oblipations herennder and shall desenibe in reasonable detail:

() The name cf the person or entity to whem such Membership Interests are
proposed to be sold:;

(b) The proposed date, time, and location of the closing of the sale;

() The proposzed amourt of consideration for the Drag-along Sale and the
other material terms and conditions of the Drag-aleng Sale, meluding a description of any non-cash
consideration n sufficient detail to permut the valuation thereof, and

(d) A copy of any form of agreement propesed to be executed in comnection
therewith

794  The obhigations of the Drag-along Members in rezpect of a Drag-along Sale under
thiz Section 7.9 are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(2) The consideration to be received by each Drag-along Member shall be the
same form and amount of consideration to be received by the Dragging Member per percentage inferest
and the terms and conditions of such zale shall, except as otherwize provided in Section 7.9.4 be the zame
a3 those upon which the Dragging Member sells its Membership Interests;

1] If the Dragging Member or any Drag-along Member iz given an option as
to the form and amount of consideration to be received, the same option shall be given to all Drag-along
Nembers; and

() Each Drag-along Member need not emecute the applicable purchase
agreement.

795  Each Drag-aleng Member shall take all actions as may be reasonably necessary to
consummate the Drap-along Szle, including, without limitation, entermg into agreements and delivening
certificates and instruments, in each caze, consistent with the agreements being entered inte and the
certificates being delivered by the Dragging Member, but subject to Section 7.9.4(c).

796 The fees and expenses of the Dragging Member incurred in connection with a
Drag-along Sale and for the benefit of all Drag-along Members (1t being understood that costs incurred by
or on behalf of 3 Dragging Member for its sole benefit will not be considered to be for the benefit of il
Drag-along Members), to the extent not paid or reimbursed by the Company or the Independent Third Party,
zhall be shared by the Dragging Member and all the Drag-along hMembers on a pro rata basis, based on the
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consideration received by each such Member; provided, that ne Drag-along Member shall be obligated to
make anmy out-of-pocket expenditure prior to the consummation of the Drag-along Sale.

7197  The Dragging Member hall have sixty (600 days following the date of the Drag-
along Notice in which to consummate the Drag-along Sale, on the terms set forth in the Drag-along Notice
{(which sixty (60) dav period may be extended for a reasonable time not to exceed ninety (90) days to the
extent reasunabh necessary to obtain required approvals or conzents from anmy Governmental Authority).
If at the end of such pmudthﬂDmEngMember has not completed the Drag along Sale, the Dragging
Member may not then exercize its nghts under this Section 7.9 without again fully complying with the
provisions of this Section 7.9.4.

ABRTICLE VIIT
REPRESENTATIONS

8.1. esentztions of the Members. Each Member hereby makes each of the
representations, warranties and agreements set forth below, as applicable, and solely with respect to such
Member as of the date hereof:

8.1.1. 1t 15 an adolt mdividual and has all requisite power and authonty to enter
into this Agreement, to acquire and held its Membership Interest and to perform its obligations hereunder;

8.1.2. itz execution znd delivery of thiz Agreement and the performance of its
obligations hereunder will not conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute 2 default (o1 an event that,
with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a default) or result in the acceleration of any material
obligation under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any other agreement or instrument to which
it is a party or by which it is bound or to which any of its pmperh or assets 13 subject, conflict with or
viclate any of the provisions of its erganizational dnc:.unem or violate any statute or any order, rule or
regulation of any court or governmental authority, in each case in a manner that results in a prohibrlmn
against, or reasonably could be expected to matenalh and adversely affect, the performance of its duties
hereunder;

8.1.3. there iz no action, suit of procesding pending against such Member or, o
its knowledge, threatened m amy court or by or before any other povernmental authonty that probubits or
could be reasonably expected to interfere in any material respect with its enfering into or performing its
ohligations under this Apresment;

8.1.4. this Apreement and all agreements, mstruments and documents herein
provided to be executed by it are and will be binding on and enforceable againet such Member in accordance
with the terms hereof and thereof: and

8.1.3. (i) neither such Member nor any Perzon owning an interest in such
Member (A) is currently identified on the OFAC List, or (B) iz a Person with whom a citizen of the United
States is prohibited to enpape in tranzachions by any trade embargo, economic sanction or other prohibition
of United States law or regulation or executive order of the President of the United States, and (ii) if
required, such Member has implemented procedures, and will consistently apply those procedures, to
enzure the forepoing representation and warranty in clause (i) to remain true and correct at all times,

8.2, Indemmty. Each Member agrees to mdemmfy and hold harmless the Company,

the other Members and their respective Affiliates, officers, directors, sharehelders, partners, members,
emplovees, successors and assigns from and against any and all less, damage, liability or expenze (including
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costs and reasonable attorney's fees) which they may incur by reason of, or in connection with, any material
breach of the foregomg representstions and warranties, and all such representations and warranties shall
survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the termination and dizsclution of any Member
and/er the Company. Any and all amounts paid to the Company pursuant to this Section 8.2 zhall not be
treated as Capital Contributions to the Company for purposes of this Agreement. If any amounts are owed
by a Member under this Section 8.2, the other Member may canse the Company to repay such amounts
from distributions that but for this sentence would have been paid to the breaching Member (and any such
pavments shall be deemed a distnibution to the breaching Member).

ARTICLETX
DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

9.1, Dissolution This Agreement will terminate and the Company will be dizselved
upon the ocenmence of any of the following events (each, a “Thazolution Event™):

9.1.1. Upon the unarimous election to dissolve by the Managers; or

9.1.2. Upon the disposition of all or substantially all of the Compeny's assets,
and the dizcontinuance of its business activities, other than activities in the nature of winding up.

Upen the cccurrence of a Dissolution Event, the business of the Company shall ke wound
up as provided in this Article IX unless the Members otherwise umammously agree.

9.2.  Statement of Intent to Dizsolve. In accordance with the Act, as soon as possible
following the occurrence and continuance of a Dissolution Event, the Liquidatng Agent will canse to be
executed and filed 2 statement of mntent to dissolve the Company n such form as 13 prescribed by the
Treasury Department of the State of New Jersey.

93 Procedurss

9.3.1. Liguidation of Assets. In the event of the dissohation of the Company, the
Managing Members or the Person required by law to wind up the Company's affairs (such Member or other
perzon bemg referred to herein as the “Liquidating Agent™) will commence to wind up the affairs of the
Company and liquidate itz assets as promptly as 13 consistent with obtaining the fair value thereof In
connection with any such winding up and liquidation, a financial statement of the Company as of the date
of dissolution will be prepared and fumished to all the Members by the Liquidating Azent.

932, Authonty of Liquidating Agent In connection with the winding up and
dizsolution of the Company, the Liqmdating Apent will have all of the nghts and powers with respect to
the aszets and liabilities of the Company that an authorized member or a manager would have pursuant to
the Act or any other applicable law.

933 Dustnbution of Assets. Following the payment of, or provision for, all
debtz and liabilities of the Company and all expenses of liquidation, and subject to the right of the
Liquidating Agent to set up such cash reserves as the Liquidating Agent may deem reasonably necessary
for any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Company, the proceads of the llc[mdahcm
and any other fimds {or other remm.nmg Company assetz) of the Company will be distributed in cash to the
Members in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.9
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94 Temunation of the Company. Upon the completion of the hiqudation of the
Company and the distribution of all assetz of the Company and other finds, the Company and thiz
Agreement will terminate and the Liquidating Agent will have the autherity to take or cause to be taken
such actions as are necessary or reasonable in order to obtain a certifieate of dissolution of the Company as
well as any and all other documents required by the Act or any other applicable law to effectuate the
dizzelution and termination of the Company.

ARTICIE X
FISCAL AND ADMINISTEATIVE MATTERS

10.1.  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company will be the calendar vear.

102, Checks, Drafts. Ete. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money,
and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Company will be signed by such
Person or Persons and in such manner as the Managers from time to time shall authorize and desipnate in

writing.

103, EBooks and Becords. The Managers, on behzlf of the Company, will maintain
books and records relating to the assets and income of the Company and the payment of expenses of, and
liahilities or claims against or assumed by, the Company in such detail and for such period of time 25 may
beneceszary to enable it to make full and proper accormting in respect thereof and to comply xmhappllcable
provisions of law. The Company’s books and records will be kept at the principal place of business of the

Conpany.

104,  FRight of Inzpection. Any Member of the Company will have the right to examine,
during normal business hours of the Compeny, for any purpose and upon reasonable prior notice to the
Managers, the mmutes and the books and records of account of the Company, and to make copies thereof
at such Member's expense. Such inzpection may be made by any reprezentative, agent or duly appointed
attorney of the Member making such request.

ABRTICLE XI
CONFIDENTIALITY
11.1. Confidentiality. The existence of and the terms and conditions of thiz Agreement
and all other information concerning the Company shall be considered confidential and shall not be disclozed
except (a) to legal counsel, agents and representatives who need to kmow such mformation in connechion
with the transactions contemplated herem, (b) disclosures required by apphicable law, () disclosures made
in connection with an arbitration, court proceeding or any other dispute resclution mechanizsm, (d)
dizclosures of information that is public, nen-confidential or nen-proprietary in nature, (2) dizclosures made

to government agencies, (f) disclosures otherwize approved by the prartl&s and (h) dizclosures made in
cormection with offering for sale Membership Interests or other secunities of the Company.

ARTICLE XTT
INDEMNIFICATION
12.1. Indemmfication

12.1.1. Subject to the terms of Section §2 no Member (or any predecessor,
successor or Affilizte of such Member or any member, principal, partner, shareholder, controlling person,

.
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officer, director, agent or emplovee of any of the aforesaid Persons) (“Indemnified Party™) shall have amy
ligbility to the Company or to any other Member for any loss suffered by the Company or any other Member
unless such loss arises out of the willful misconduct or frand of such Indemnified Member; provided,
however, that this Section 12.1.1 shall not limit, restrict or otherwize affect the rights or oblipations of a
Member (or any predecessor, successor or Affiliate of such Member or any member, principal, partmer,
shareholder, controlling person, efficer, director, agent or employee of any of the aforesaid Persons) under
thiz Agreement or any other agreement to which it 13 a party.

12.1.2. Subject to the terms of Section 2.2, the Company shall mdemnify, defend
and held hammless each Member and'or itz Affiliates, and any of their respective officers, duectors.
shareholders, partners, members, managers, employess or agents and each officer of the Company (each,
an “Indemnitee’ :lfmmandagmnst any and all claims or habilibies of any nature whatsoever ansing ot of
the business of the Company, including reasonable attorneys' fees and dishursements arising out of or in
connection with any action {excluing any Transfer by a Member of all or any portion of its L’.[em]:ersh.lp
Imterest or by any other Person of any direct or indirect beneficial cvmership interest in any Member) taken
or omitted by it pursuant to the authomty granted by this Apreement; provided, however, that ne
indemmnification may be made to or on behalf of any Indemmitee if such Indemmitee’s (or its Affiliate's) acts
in connection with such claim for indemmnification constituted frand or willful misconduct; and provided,
further, that no indemmification shall be made in respect of claims or hiabilities to the extent an Indemnitee
has already Iencmemdpmsuaulto any other agreement to which such an Indemmnitee is 2 party. Expenses
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements) incurred by an Indemmites in defending any actual
or threatened claim, de:manﬂ action, suit or procesding shall, fromtmetohm:e_ beadva.medb} the
Company pricr to the final disposiﬁou of such claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding upon recerpt by
the Company of an undertaking by urmbaha]fufthe[nd&mmteeturepm su::hamouuts:fltlsultmmeh
determined that such Indemnitee 15 not entifled to indemnification under this Section 12.1.2 with respect
thereto. Notwithstanding the forepoing, the Indemmitee shall not be entitled to indemmification with respect
to amy amount paid in settlement if the settlement was effected without the Company's prior written consent,
which shall not be unreasenably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

12.1.3. Except as expressly provided herein, no direct or indirect hember,
shareholder or member in or of any Member (and no officer, director, member, emplovee or agent of such
Member, sharsholder, or member) and no officer of the Company shall have any personal hability under
this Agreement.

122, ExculpationMember Indemnification. Subject to Section 8.2, except in the case
of frand, gross neglipence, or willful misconduct, or as otherwise provided herein, no Member shall be
liable to any other Member or the Company for (i) any act or omissien performed or omitted in good faith,
(i) such Member's failure or refusal to perform any act, except those required by the terms of this
Agreement or (jii) the negligence, dishonesty or bad faith of any agent, consultant or broker of the Company
selected, engared or retained in geod faith.

ABRTICLE XIIT
MISCELLANEQUS
13.1.  Notices.

153.1.1. All notices, requests or other communications required or permitted to be
made in accordance with this Apreement shall be in writing and shall be deliversd personally, by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, by overnight courier or by email to the Members at the addresses
set forth below:

Ifto the Company: THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW
25

70



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

JERSEYLILC

1000 Lincoln Dirive East, Second Floor
Marlton, NJ 08033

Email: sci@aacctpro.com

Attention: Spencer Saint-Cyr

Ifto the Manager: Spencer Sant-Cyr
Manager, THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF
NEW JERSEY LLC
1000 Lincoln Drive Eazt, Second Floor
Marlton, NJ 08033

scifizacctpro.com

Ifto a Member: To the Member's address az zet forth on the
Member's Schedule.

15.1.2. All such notices shall be deemed to have been duly delivered: at the time
delivered by hand or refusal of delivery, if personally delivered; three (3) Business Days after being
deposited in the mail (postaze prepaid), lfmaJ]edI:n oerhﬁedﬂrree;lstereﬂmall audouthedm deliversd
or refuszl of delivery, if sent by anmorg;mundcmmerguarautemngmmmghxdslweq or by email.

13.1.3. Any Member may change the address at whach it 15 to receive notices
under this Agreement by furnishing written notice in accordance with the provisions of this Section 13.1 to
the other Member.

13.1.4. Whenever any notice 1z required to be given by law or this Agreement, a
waiver thereof in writing, signed by the Person entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time of
the event for which notice i3 to be given, will be deemed equivalent to such notice.

132, Extension Not a Waiver. No delay or omission in the exercize of any power,
remedy or right herein provided or otherwize available to any party hereto will impair or affect the nght of
suchpam thereafter to exercize the same. Any Extensmnnfhmaoro‘thermdﬂgmgmntedtoam party
hereunder will not otherwizse alter or affect any power, remedy or right of any cther party hereto, or the
obligations of the party to whom such extension or indulgence iz gauted.

133. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement
batween the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and all pricr agreements relative thereto that are
not contained heren or therein zre terminated. Amendments, vanations, modifications or changes herein
may be made effective and binding upon the parties hereto by, and -:mlt by, a written agreement duly
executed by all the Members, and any alleped amendment, '.“anahon, moiﬁcatmn or chanme herein which
is not so documented will not be effective as to any party hereto; provided, however, Managing hMember
shall have the right to amend thiz Agreement without the consent of the Members to (1) correct any
scrivener's error, (i) reflect the admizsion of an additional or substituted hember or (i) add “mgle
purpose entity” or other provisions required by a lender of any loan made to the Company or a Subsidiary
and approved in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

134, Governng Law. THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVEENED BY,
CONSTEUED UNDEE. AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY WITHOUT REGARD TOITS CONFLICTS OF LAWS PRINCIPLES.

13.3.  Venue Amy action or other legal proceeding brought under this Agreement wall
be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court of competent jurisdiction in or having
jurisdiction over the county of Burlington in the State of New Jersey. Each of the Members consents to this
jurisdiction for actions or legal procesdings brought by any other Member or the Company and waives any
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ohjection which it may have to the laying of the venue of such suit, action or procesding in any of such
courts.

13.6. Headings. Sections, subheadings and other headings uzed in this Agreement are
in noe way intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent of thiz Agreement, or
any provision hereof.

13.7.  Sewverability. Amy provision of this Apreement which iz prohibited or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction will not invalidate the remaining provisions hereof, and any such
prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction will not invalidate or render unenforceable any such
provision in amy other jurisdiction. In such event, the parties shall work together in good faith to IEP]E.CE
any such prohibited or unenforceabls provizion with a valid and enforceable provision that, as closely as
pos:uble effectnates the parties’ intent.

13.8. Failure to Enforce Provision The failure of amy Member to seek redress for a
viclation, or to insist upon the strict performance, of any covenant or condition of this Apreement will not
prevent a subsequent act, which would have ongimally constituted a violation, from having the effect of an
original violation.

139,  Interpretation. All proncuns and variations thereof will be desmed to refer to the
mazculine, feminine, neuter, singular or phoral as the identity of the individual or other entity may require.

13.10. C z. Thiz Agreement may be executed in cne or more counterparts, all
of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same apreement. The exchange of copies of this
Agreement, anv amendments hereto, any signature pages required hereunder or any other documents
required or contemplated hereunder bﬁ facsimile or Portable Document Format {pdﬂ transmission shall
mnsttuteeﬁmtn‘eemmﬂmuaﬂddehtm of zame a3 to the parties thereto and may be used in lien of the
original documents for all purposes. Sipnatures transmitted by facsimile or Portable Document Format
zhall be deemed to be oniginal signatures for all purposes. Following the delivery of anv pdf sigrature page,
any party may request that the applicable party deliver an original signature page with respect thereto, but
the failure to deliver any such original signature page shall in no event affect in any mamner the
enforceshility of the applicable pdf signature page. Each Member herehy waives any defense to the
enforcement of the terms ocfthlshgea:aﬂnt based on the form of the stguaiureandhereb} agree that
electronically transmitted or zigned signatures shall be conclusive proof, admizsible n judicial proceedings,
of their respective execution of this Apreement.

13.11. Deadlock. A Deadlock shall be deemed to emst wherever a decision requinng a
majority vote pursuant to this Apreement iz impossible due to an imeconcilable difference of opinion
between either the Manapers or Class A Membership Interests (“Deadlock Parties™) for which a majerity
vote 15 required In such sifuation, any Manager or Class A Umit Holder mvolved in the Deadlock
(“Deadlock Issuer™) may, at anmy time, issue notice to the other Manager or Class A Unit Holder (a
“Deadlock Notice™) and ‘assert that there iz an imeconcilable difference of opinion ameong the Managers or
Class A Unit Holders (a “Deadlock™). The Deadlock Notice shall deseribe the natre of the Deadlock, the
reazons for the Deadlock, the resolution proposed by the Deadlock Issuer, and the basis for that resohrtion.
The Deadlock Parties shall negotiate in good faith during the 30-dav penied after the date the Deadlock
Notice iz received to rezolve the circumstances giving rise to the Deadlock Notice. If the subject of the
Deadlock 15 not resolved within soch 30-day peniod, then any Deadlock Party may inthate mediahon
procedures, or give a notice to the other Deadlack Party(ies) (a “Buy-Sell Notice' % 5peu:|f1.1ng an offer price
(the “DEiHPnce’] The giving of a Buy-5ell Notice by a Member (the “Offeror Member™) shall constitute
bath (1) an offer to purchase all of the other Member's (the “Offeree Member™) Membership Interest at a
price equal to the Offeree hember's Percentage multiplied by the Offer Price and (it} an offer by the Offeror
Member to sell all of its Membership Interest to the Offeree Member at a price equzl to the Offeror
Member's Percentage multiplied by the Offer Price. Within 15 business days after receiving the Buy-Sell
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Notice, the Offeree Member shall have the right to elect (1) to sell its Membership Interest or (i) purchase
the other Member's Membershup Interest at the applicable price. If the Offeree Member elects to purchase
the Offeror Member's Membership Interest and fails to cloze the purchase within 120 days, the Offeree
Member shall be in breach of this Agreement, and az a result, the Offeree Member will loze its right to
purchase and the Offeror Member can offer its Membership Interest to other Members or third parties.

13.12. Amendments to Tax Provizions. The Managers, upon obtaining tax advice from
tax professionals, may propose amendments to the provisions of Articles IV and V of thiz Agreement. Such
proposed amendments shall be nohified to the Members and shall not adversely affect the Members® nights
or hiabilities without their consent.

ARTICLE XTIV
AMENDMENTS: TERMINATION

141  Election Upon Failure to Be Awarded Licenze In the event that the Company fails
to be awarded the Licenses and the Managers do not mtend to authonize the Company to apply for other
licenses to operate medicinal, adult use or recreational manjuana business in New Jersey, at the election of
Members holding a majerity “of Class A Units either (2) the Compam. will commence a process for (1) the
sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition, in a single tramsaction or series of related
transa-::tious_. by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company of all or substantially all the assets of the
Company and its subsidianies taken as a whole, (11) a fransaction or series of related transactions in which
aPerzon, or a group of related Persons, acquires Units representing more than 30% of the cutstanding voting
power of the Company, or (iil) 2 merger or conselidation in which the Company is a constituent party or a
subsidiary of the Company 1za constifuent party, or (b) the Company will dissolve and commence winding
up in accordance with Section T

[Signature Page to Follow]
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[THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTVYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC — Operating
Apreement — Signature Page]

INWITNESS WHERECF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date and year
first above written.

By:
WName: Spencer Samt-Cyr

By:
WName: Damon Penmington

THE GREENHOUSE LIFESTYLE OF NEW JERSEY LLC

By:
Name: Spencer Saint-Cyr
Title: Manager

[End of Signatures]
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EXHIBIT A

OWNEERSHIP OF THE COMPANY 'S MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS

Name Class of Capital Percentage of Number of Units
Membership Contribution Class Owned
Interest
Spencer Samt-Cyvr | Class A 0% 491,873
Damen Class A 30% 491 873
Pennington
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EXHIBITB
MANAGERS SCHEDULE
Manager Name Manager Address
Spencer Samnt-Cyr 1029 Riverton Road
Moorestown, NI 08037
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Appendix 5 — Subscription Agreement

Subscription Agresmernt

THE SECURITIES ARE BEING OFFERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 4(A)6) OF THE
SECUERITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE "SECURITIES ACT") AND HAVE NOT BEEN
FEGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. THEEE ARE FURTHEER RESTRICTIONS ON
THE TEANSFERABILITY OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN.

THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES INVOLVES A HIGH DEGEEE OF RISK AND
SHOULD BE CONSIDERED ONLY BY PERSONS WHO CAN BEAFR THE RISK OF THE
LOSE OF THEIR. ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

The Greenhouse Lifestyle of Wew Jerzey LLC
1000 Lincoln Drive 3A, Second floor
Marlton, New Jersey 08033

The umdersigned umdarstands that Tha Graenhouss Lifestyls of Mew Jarsay LLC, a linuted liability company organized
mnder the laws of Mew Jersay (the *Company™), i= offering up to $1,235,000.00 of Class D Mambership Units (the
"Securities") m 2 Regulation CF Offering (the “Offering™). The undersizned firther understands that the Offering 1=
being made pursuant to Section 4(z)(F) of the Securities Act and Regulation CF under the JOBS Act of 2012 and
without regisiration of the Securities under the Sacurities Act of 1933, as amendad (the "Securties Act").

1. Subscription. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof and the provisions of the Form C, the indersigned haraby
nrevocably subscribes for the Securtties sst forth on the siznature page hereto for the aggregate purchase price set
forth on the signature page hareto, which is payable as desenbed in Section 4 hereof. The undersigned acknowledzes
that the Secumities will be subject to restnctions on transfer as set forth in this subscripbion agreement (the
"Subscription Agreement'”).

2. Description of Securities. The Company is offering units of Class D) membership interest at Twenty Cents (30.20)
par unit.

3. Acceptance of Subscription and Issuance of Securities. Tt iz understood and asreed that the Company shall have
tha zole right, at itz complate discretion, to accept or raject this subscription, i whole or m part, for any reason and
that the same shall be desmed o ba accepted by the Company only when it is sizned by a duly autherized officer of
the Company and delivered to the undersizned after a closing of the Offaring or (2 “Closing™). Subseriptions need
not be zcceptad in the order raceived, and the Securities may be allocated among subscribars.

4. Payment for Securities, Payment for the Securities shall be received by East West Banlk (the "Escrow Azent™) from
the undersizned of immediately availabls fimds or other means approrved by the Company at least two days prier to
the Closmg, m the amount as set forth on the signature paze hereto. Upen the Closmg, the Escrow Agent shall
relazse such fimds to the Company. The undersizned shall recefve notice and evidence of the entry of the mumbar
of the Secunties ovwmed by undersiznad reflacted on the bocks and records of the Company, which shall bear a
notation that the Securthes ware sold i reliance upon an exemption from resistration under the Becurties Act.

5. Reprezentationz and Warranties of the Company. s of'the Closing, the Company represents and warrants that-

&) The Company iz duly formed and valdly existing under the laws of New Jersey, with full power and
authority to conduct 1ts busmess as it 1s cwrrently being conducted and to own its assats; and has secured
any other authorizations, approvals, permits and orders requirad by law for the conduct by the Company
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of its business as it is currently being conductad.

b) Assummg the accuracy of the undersizned s represantations and warrantiss set forth in Section 6§ hareof,
no order, license, consent, authomzation or approval of, or exemption by, or achion by or i respect of,
or notica to, or filing or registration with, any governmental body, agency or official is requirad by or
with respect to the Company in commaction with the execution, delivery and performance by the
Company of this Subscripton Agreement except (1) for such filmss as may be required undsr
Regulation CF promulsatad under the Securities Act, or under any applicable State Securities Laws, (i1)
for such other filings and approvals as have been made or obtamed, or (ii1) where the failurs to obtain any
such order, licenszs, consent, authorization, approval or exemphon or give amy such notice or make any
filing orregistration would not have a material adverse effact on the ability ofthe Company to perform its
ohlizations hereunder.

6. Reprezentationz and Warrantiez of the Undersigned. The undersiznad hereby reprasents and warrants to and
covenants with the Compary that:

a) General

1. The umdarzizned has all requisite authority (and in the caze of an individual, the capacity) to
purchaze the Becuntes, emfer mto this Subscriphon Agresment and to perform all the
obligations required to be performed by the undersisned hereunder, and such purchase will
not contravens any law, rule or regulation binding on the undarsizned or any vestment
gmdelme or resinction applicable to the undersigned.

. The underzizned iz a resident of the state sat forth on the signature paze herato and iz not
aoquirmg the Sscurtties as a nomines or agent or otherwise for any other person.

m. The wndersigned will comply with all applicable laws and regulations n effect m amy
Jurisdiction m which the undersiened purchases or salls Sacurities and obtain anv consant,
approval or permizsion requirad for such porchases or sales under the laws and regulations of
any Jurisdiction to winch the undersigned is subject or in which the undersigned makes such
purchases or sales, and the Company shall have no responsibility tharefor.

. Including the amount set forth on the signatura paze hareto, m the past fwelve (12) month
pariod, the undersigned hae not exceedad the irvestment linut 3z set forth m Fuls 1000z)(2) of
FRegulation CF.

b) Information Concerning the Company.

I. The undersizned has received a copy of the Fornm C. With respect to information provided
by the Company, the undersignad has rehed solely on the mformation contamed m the Form
C to mzke the decision to purchasa the Sacurities.

. The undersigned understands and accepts that the purchase of the Securities imvolves vanous
rizks, including the rizks outlined in the Form C and in this Subscription Agresment. The
underzigned represants that it iz able to bear army and all loss azsociated with an investment in
the Securties.

m. The undersizned confirms that if is not relymz and waill not rely on any commmication
[wrrtten or orzl) of the Comparnry, or any of their respactrve affiliates, as mvestment advice or
2z 3 recommendation to purchase the Secumties. It iz understood that information and
explanations related to the terms and conditions of the Securities provided i the Form C or

78



The Greenhouse Lifestyle of New Jersey LLC

<)

)

€}

otherwize by the Company, or any of ther respective affiliates shall not be considerad
mvestment advice or a recommendation to purchasze the Securthes, and that nerther the
Compary, nor any of their respactive affiliates iz actmz or has acted 25 an advisor to the
underzigned m deciding to mrvest m the Securities. The undersizned acknowladges that
neither the Company, nor any of their respective affiliates have made amy representation
regarding the proper characterizafion of the Securities for purposes of determining the
underzigned’'s authonty or surtability to imvest i the Securthes.

. The undersizmed 1= famuliar with the bosiness and financial condition and oparations of the
Company, all as generally described m the Form C. The undersizned has had access to such
information concerning the Company and the Securities as it desms necessary to anable it to
make an informed investment decizion conceming the purchass of the Securitiss.

v. Theundersigned understands that, unless the underzizned notifies the Company in writing to
the contrary at or before the Closmz, each of the undersizned’s representations and
warranties contained m this Subseription Asresment will be deemed to have baen reaffirmad
and confirmed az of the Closing, takmz mto accowt all information received by the
undersizned.

1. The undersigned acknowledges that the Company has the nght m its sole and absclute
dizeretion to abandon this Offering at any time prior to the completion of the Offarms. This
Subseription Agreement shall thareafter have no fores or effect and the Company shall retum
any previowsly paid subscniphon price of the Secunties, without mterest thereon, to the
underzizned.

il The undersizned understands that no federal or state agency has passed upon the ments or
rizks of an imveastment in the Securities or made any finding or determination concerning the
fairmess or advisabibty of this investment.

The undersignad confirms that the Company has not (1) grven any guarantes or represantation as to the
potential success, retum, effect or benefit (either legal, regulatory, tax, financial, accounfing or
otherwise) of an mvestment in the Securities or (i) made anv represemtation to the undersizmed
rezarding the legality of an iestment m the Sacuritiss under appheabla lezal trrastment or similar
laws or regulatons. In deciding to purchase the Securthes, the undersigned 1= not relyimg on the advice
or recommendations of the Company and the underzisned has made its own independent decizion that
the imvestment in the Secorities is smtable and appropriate for the undersizned

Theunderzizned has such mowledge, skill and experience in buziness, financial and investment matters
that the undersizned 15 capable of evaluating the ments and nsks of an mvestment in the Secunties.
With the assistance of the indersipned’s own professional advisors, to the extent that the undersienaed
has deemed appropriate, the undersismed has made s own legal tax, accounting and financial
evalustion of the ments and nsks of an investment in the Securities and the consequences of this
Subscription Asreement. The undersigned has comsidered the sutability of the Securifies as an
investment in light of ifts o clrcumetances and finanecial condition and the undersignad 15 able to bear
the rizks associated with an rvestment m the Securrhies and its authority to movest m the Securities.

The undarsigned is acquiring the Securities solely for the indersigned’s onn beneficial account, for
mveshment purposes, and not with a view to, or for resale m connection with, any distnbution of the
Becuritiss. Tha undersizned wndarstands that the Sscuritiss have not been registered undar tha
Securities Act or any State Securthes Laws by reason of specific exemptions under the proisions
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thereof which depend in part wpen the investment mtent of the undersizned and of the other
reprazantations mades by the undersizned m this Subscnipfion Asresment. The wndersipned understands
that the Comparry is relying upon the represantations and asresments contained in this Subscnption
Apreament (and any supplemental mformation) for the purpose of determining whether this transaction

f) The undersizned understands that the Secunities are resincted from transfer for a pened of time under
applicable fadaral securities laws and that the Securities Act and the mles of the TS, Sacurities and
Exchange Commuzssion (the "Commizsion™) provide in substance that the undersizned may disposs of
the Secumbies only pursuant to an effective registrahion stztement umder the Secunfies Act, an
exemption therefrom or as further described in Fule 301 of Regulation CF, after which certain state
restrictions may apply. The underzizned understands that the Company has no oblization or intention
to register any of the Sacurities, or to take action 30 as to parmit sales pursuant to the Securities Act. Even
whan the Sacurities become freely transferrable, 2 secondary markest in the Securities may not develop.
Consaquantly, the undersizned understands that the wndersizned must bear the econcmuc nsks of the
investrnent in the Sacurities for an mdefinite pericd of time.

g) Theundersizned agrees: [A) that the undersizned will not sell, assizn, pledze, srve, transfar or othernise
dispose of the Sacurities or any interest therem, or (B) make any offer or attempt to do any of the
foregoing, except pursuant to Rule 501 of Fegulation CF.

7. Conditionz to Oblizationz of the Undersigned and the Company. The cbligations of the wndersiznad to
purchass and pay for the ecurities specified on the signature page hereto and of the Compamy fo ssll the
Securihes are subject to the satisfachon at or pror to the Closmng of the following conditions precedent: the
reprezantations and warranties of the Company contained in Section 5 hereof and of the undersizned contained
in Section 6 hereof shall be true and correct az of the Closmz m all respects with the same sffiact as thouzh such
reprasentations and warranties had been made as of the Closing.

8. Obligation: Irrevocable. Following the Closing, the obligzhions of the wndersiened shall be mrevocabls.

9, Legend. The certificates, book entry or other form of notztion representing the Securities sold pursuant to this
Subscription Asreement will be notated with a legend or desisnation, which commumicates in some manmer
that the Securtties were issuad pursuant to Section 4(2)(6) of the Securities Act and may only be resold purmant
to Rula 501 of Ragulation CF.

10. Waiver, Amendment. Maithar this Subscription Asreement nor any provisions hereof shall be modified,
chanzed discharzed or tenminated except by an mestnmment in writing, sizned by the party asamst whom any
waiver, change, discharge or ternunation is sought

11. A=zignability. Meither this Subscription Asresment nor anv right, remedy, oblization or lizhility arising
hareundar or by rezson hereof shall be assiznable by either the Company or the umdersigned without the prier
written consent of the other party.

12. Waiver of Jury Trial. THE UNDERSIGNED IREEVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY WITH EESPECT TO AWY LEGAL PROCEEDING AFRISING OUT OF THE
TERANSACTIONS CONTEMFPLATED BY THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREENMENT.

13. Dizpute Rezolution.

a) General Ruls. Ay dispute wnder this Subseription Agreement will be resobred through arbitration, not
through the court system All arbitration will be conducted in the stata where the exacutive office of the
Company 1= located at such time, unless both parties agres otherwize m writing in a specific case. All
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arbitration will be conducted befors a single arbitrator m following the mles of the American
Arbrtration Association. Except as required by law, nerther a party nor the arbiirator may disclosa the
existance, content or rasults of amy arbitration without the prior written consent of the other parties.

b) Appeal of Award. Within thirty days of a final award by the single arbifrator, either party may appeal
thea award for reconsidaration by 2 three-arbitrator pansl. If there iz an appeal, the other party may cross-
appeal withm thirty days after notice of the appeal. The panal will reconsider all aspects of the mrtial
award that are appealed, including related findings of fact.

¢} Effect of Award. Amy award by the individual arbitrator that is not subject to appeal, and any panel
award on zppeal, shall be final and binding, except for any appeal right undar the Federal Arbitration
Act, and may be entered as a judgment In any court of competent junisdichion.

d) Mo Class Action Clams. NO ARBITRATION SHALL PROCEED ON A CLASS,
FEPERESENTATIVE, OR. COLLECTIVE BASIE. Mo party may jom, conselidate, or otheranze bring
claims for or on bahalf of fuo or more mdividuals or unrelated corporate antities inthe same arbitration
unless those persoms are parties to a single transaction. An award in arbitration shall determme the nghts
and oblizations of the named parties only, and only with respect to the clanns in arbitrabion, and shall
not (1) determine the rights, obligations, or interests of anyone other than a named party, or resolve any
claim of amyone other than a named party, or (i1} make an award for the benefit of, or against, anyone
other than a named party. Mo administrator or arbitrator shall have the power or autherify to waive,
modify, or fail to enforcs this parasraph, and any attempt to do so, whether by ruls, policy, and
arbitration decision or otherwise, shall be mvahd and wmenforceable. Any challenge to the validity of
this parazraph shall be datermumed axclosively by a court and net by the administrator or any arbitrator.
If thiz paragraph shall be deamed unenforcazble, then any procesding inthe nature of a clzss action shall
be handled n court, not m arbifration.

14. Governing Law. This Subscription Azreernent shall be governed by and construed m accordance with the
laws of the State of MNew Jersay, without regard to conflict of law prmeiples thereof.

15. Section and Other Headings, The section and other headinzs contamed in this Subscription Agresment are
for referance purposss only and shall not zffect the mearmg or interpretation of thic Subscnption Asreement.

16. Electronic Subzcription. The undersizned shall provide certain information to the Company, such as hus or
her mame, email address, address, and subseription amount, and selact “accapt,” or the sguivalent acton of
acceptance, to confirm the personal mformation and mvestment of the undersigned through the platform
hosting the Offarms (“Electronic Acceptanca™), and such Electronic Acceptance shall constituta the electronic
siznatura of the undersigned and s or her desire o be bound to this Subseription Agreement and accepted as
an mvestor i the Company. Each party herato agress to the following:

a) the electronic sipnafure of the indersizmed, as provided through Electronic Acceptance, 1= the lagal
equivalent of his or her manual sisnature on this Subscription Asreement and constitutes execution and
delivary of thiz Subscription Agresment by the mmdersignad;

b) the Company's acceptance of the undersigned’s subseription and electronic sisnature herato is tha lezal
squivalent of iz manupal signature on thiz Subscription Agrsement and constifutes execution and
delivary of this Subscriphon Agresment by the Company; and

c) each party’s execution and delvery of this Subseriphion Agreement as provided in this Section 16
establishes such partv's acceptance of the tanms and condrhons of this Subseriphion Asreament.

17. Notices. All notices and other comnmmications provided for herein shall be m writing and shall be desmed to
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have been duly given if delrverad personally or sent by registerad or certified mail, return receipt requestad,
postage prepaid or email to the following addresses (or such other address as erther party shall have spacifiad by
notica i writing to the other):

Tha Greanhouse Lifestvle of Mew Jersay LLC
If to the Company: 1000 Lincoln Drive 34, Second floor
Marlton, New Jersay 08033

[PURCHASER ADDERESS] [E-MAIL ADDRESE]
If to the Purchazer:

18. Binding Effect. The provisions of this Subscription Agresment shall be binding upon and zcere to the
banefit of the parties hereto and their respective hairs, lazal representatives, muccessors and assizns.

19.  Sworvival. All representations, warranties and covenants contained in this Subscription Asreamant shall
survive (i) the acceptance of the subscription by the Company, (i1} changes in the transactions, documents and
mstroments describad m the Form C which are not material or which are to the benefit of the undarsignad and
(1) the death or disahility of the undarsignad.

20. Notification of Changes. The mndersizned hereby covenants and agrees to notify the Company upon the
ccourrence of any event prior to the closing of the purchase of the Secorities pursuant to this Subscription
Apreament, which would cause ary representation, warranty, or covenant of the indersizmed contamed i flus
Subscription Asraement to be false or incorrect.

21.  Severahility, If any term or provision of this Subscription Asreement 15 nrvalid, illegal or unenforceabls
i arry jurisdiction, such pralidity, illegality or unenforcaahility shall not affact any other term or provizion of
this Subscription Apresment or mvalidate or render unenforceabls such term or provision m any other
Jumsdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the undersizned has executed this Subscription Agreement this
[DAY] OF [MONTH], [YEAR].

PURCHASER (if an individual):

By
Name:

PURCHASER (if an entity):

Legal Name of Entity
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By

Mame:
Title:

State/Country of Domicile or Formation:
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Appendix 6 — Offering Page

@ JREENHOUSE
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Augmented Reality (AR) Ouest Chels, infused foeds, and mocktails
Dive into ougrmentad redity ot Greenhouse, where tach meets larpenes nouige In culinary sscslence 08 guest chefs present Nfused foods and
n rynersve exporiences that educote and enterton crafted moackials, blending gourmet flavors with the finest cannabi

erng Type

Moximum Offecr

$1,235,000

$10,000

Valuation Minimum rvestrment

$200

Avaiable Units

6,175,000 Units




